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COMPANY INFORMATION 

 

 
 
 

VISION 
To become the preferred Financial Services provider in Pakistan, assis�ng Individuals, Companies and Financial 
Ins�tu�ons find op�mal Capital Markets related solu�ons 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MISSION 
To offer a wide range of products and services in a transparent manner with an emphasis on integrity and client 
confiden�ality 

 

To provide customers with complete and innova�ve solu�ons by using the best minds and technology 
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NOTICE OF FIFTEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 
 
No�ce is hereby given that the Fi�eenth (15th) Annual General Mee�ng (AGM) of Next 
Capital Limited [the Company] will be held on Friday, October 25, 2024 at 11:15 a.m. at the 
Registered Office of the Company, situated at 2nd Floor, Imperial Court, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed 
Road, Karachi to transact the following businesses: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 
 
1. To confirm the minutes of the Fi�eenth (15th) Annual General Mee�ng (AGM) held on 

October 25, 2023. 
 

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 
year ended June 30, 2024 together with the Directors’ and Auditor’s Reports thereon. 

 
3. To approve the appointment of the Auditor for the year ending June 30, 2025. The 

re�ring Auditor Messrs. Baker Tilly Mehmood Idrees Qamar, Chartered Accountants, 
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment. 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 
 
4. To consider and, if deemed fit, pass, with or without modifica�on, the following resolu�ons, as 

special resolu�ons, in accordance with the provisions of Sec�on 183(3) of the Companies Act, 
2017, for the purposes of authorizing the Company to transfer the business division of Finqalab 
(including all tangible and intangible assets including copyrights, licenses, patents, trademarks, 
intellectual proper�es, as well as the employees) (“Finqalab” or “Project”) to a wholly owned 
subsidiary against issuance of shares.  
 
“RESOLVED THAT the Company be and is hereby authorized, in accordance with Section 183(3) of 
the Companies Act, 2017 to transfer the entire business division of Finqalab (including all tangible 
and intangible assets including copyrights, licenses, patents, trademarks, intellectual properties, 
as well as the employees) at book value, to a wholly owned subsidiary against issuance of shares, 
for non-cash consideration or through any other mechanism approved by the Board of Directors 
of the Company.  
 
FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Chief Executive Officer, jointly with any one of the Chief Financial 
Officer or MD - Capital Markets or Director - Investment Banking, or such other person(s) as may 
be authorized by any of them (the “Authorized Persons”), be and is hereby authorized and 
empowered to take all necessary steps, determining a cut-off date for the transfer, make the 
requisite decisions from time to time, do all such acts, deeds and things, obtain necessary 
approvals, and to execute and deliver all such deeds, agreements, declarations, undertakings and 
guarantees, including any ancillary document thereto or provide any such documentation for and 
on behalf and in the name of the Company as may be necessary or required or as they or any of 
them may think fit for or in connection with or incidental for the purposes of carrying out the 
proposed resolutions. 
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions heretofore taken by any of the Authorized Persons on behalf 
of the Company in respect of the above matters are hereby confirmed, ratified, and adopted by 
the Company in full.” 
 
ALSO RESOLVED THAT Chief Executive Officer and or the Company Secretary of the Company be 
and are hereby severally authorized to sign and submit required statutory returns, 
announcements, e-filings with the Registrar of Companies, CRO, SECP, Pakistan Stock Exchange 
and or any other authority / regulator and to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be 
necessary to do in this regard. 
 

 

The QR Enabled Code and web link are as follows: 

htps://www.nextcapital.com.pk/investors 

 
 
 
Karachi. 
Dated: October 05st, 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.nextcapital.com.pk/investors
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By order of the Board 

Muhammad Rizwan Yousuf 
Company Secretary   

1. NOTES 
 

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 18th, 2024 
to October 25rd, 2024 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order by the Shares 
Registrar of the Company, M/s. Digital Custodian Company Limited (DCCL), Perdesi 
House, Queens Road, Karachi up to the close of business on October 17th, 2024 will be 
treated in time for the purpose of attending the Annual General Meeting. 
 
 
 

2. Requirements for atending the Annual General Mee�ng 
 

i. In the case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder whose registra�on 
details are uploaded as per the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 
Regula�ons, shall authen�cate his/her iden�ty by showing his/ her valid original 
Computerized Na�onal Iden�ty Card (CNIC) or original Passport at the �me of atending 
the AGM.  
 

ii. In the case of corporate en�ty, Board of Directors’ resolu�on/Power of Atorney and 
atested copy of the CNIC or passport of the nominee shall also be produced (unless 
provided earlier) at the �me of mee�ng. 
 

3. Requirements for appointing Proxies: 
 

iii. A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member as 
his or her proxy to attend and vote. Proxies in order to be effective, must be received at 
M/s. Digital Custodian Company Limited (DCCL), 508, Perdesi House, Queens Road, 
Karachi not later than forty-eight hours before the time of the meeting and must be duly 
stamped, signed and witnessed. 

 
iv. Members, proxies or nominees shall authen�cate their iden�ty by showing their original 

Computerized Na�onal Iden�ty Card (CNIC) or original Passport and bringing their folio 
numbers at the �me of atending the mee�ng. 

 
v. In order to be effec�ve, the proxy forms must be received at the office of our Share 

Registrar no later than 48 hours before the mee�ng, duly signed and stamped and 
witnessed by two persons with their names, addresses, CNICs’ numbers and signatures. 

 
vi. In the case of individuals, atested copies of CNIC or passport of the beneficial owners and 

the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form. 
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vii. In the case of proxy by a corporate en�ty, Board of Directors’ Resolu�on / Power of 

Atorney and atested copy of the CNIC or passport of the proxy shall be submited along 
with proxy form. 

 
viii. In case of proxy for corporate members, the Board of Directors' Resolu�on / Power of 

Atorney with specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced at the �me of 
mee�ng (unless it has been provided earlier to the Shares Registrar). 

 
 
4. En�tlement date 

 
Physical transfers and deposit request under Central Depository System received at the 
close of the business on October 17, 2024 by the Company’s Share Registrar will be 
treated being in �me for en�tlement to atend, par�cipate in and vote at the mee�ng. 
 

5. Submission of valid CNIC (Mandatory)  
 
Shareholders / Members are requested to submit copies of their valid CNIC. All 
shareholders / members having physical shareholding are advised to submit a photocopy 
of their valid CNIC immediately, if already not provided, to the Share Registrar without any 
further delay. 
 

6. Participation in AGM through Electronic Means  
 
The Company will hold the AGM both physically at the Head Office of the Company and 
through electronic means via Zoom enabling the shareholders / members to attend and 
participate in the 15th AGM of the Company through video link arrangement, therefore, 
shareholders / members are requested to complete identification and verification 
formalities i.e. provide their names, CNIC scanned (both sides), folio numbers, cell phone 
numbers and email addresses on or before October 20, 2024 by 5:00 p.m. at the following 
email address i.e. co.secretary@nextcapital.com.pk. The video link of meeting will be sent 
to the shareholders / members on their email addresses. 
 

Upon receipt of the above information from interested shareholders / members, the 
Company will send the login credentials at their email address. On the date of AGM, 
shareholders will be able to login to participate in the AGM proceedings through their 
smartphone/computer devices. 
 

7. Circulation/Transmission of Annual Audited Financial Statements 
 
The Audited Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2024 are accessible on the 
Company’s website (https://www.nextcapital.com.pk/). 

https://www.nextcapital.com.pk/
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8. Conversion of Physical Shares into CDC Account 
 
The SECP has issued Letter No. CSD/ED/Misc./2016-639-640 dated March 26, 2021 
addressed to all listed companies drawing attention towards the provision of Section 72 
of the Companies Act, 2017 (Act) which requires all companies to replace shares issued 
by them in physical form with shares to be issued in the Book-Entry-Form within a period 
not exceeding four years from the date of the promulgation of the Act. Therefore, the 
shareholders / members who still hold shares in physical form are requested to convert 
their shares in the Book-Entry-Form. 
 

9. Postal Ballot / E-voting 
 
Pursuant to the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018, the shareholders /members 
will be allowed to exercise their right of vote through postal ballot that is voting by post 
or through any electronic mode, in accordance with the requirements and procedure 
under the aforesaid Regulations. The details of the same will be provided later. 
 

10. Comments and Suggestions 
  
Shareholders can also provide their comments/suggestions for the proposed agenda 
items of the AGM on the email: co.secretary@nextcapital.com.pk  

 
11. Notify Change of address to the Share Registrar  
 

Shareholders / Members are requested to immediately notify the change, if any, in their 
registered address/contacts numbers to Share Registrar, M/s. Digital Custodian Company 
Limited, Perdesi House, Queens Road, Karachi. Tel: +92 21 32419770, +92 21 32430485. 
 
“Statement under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017, concerning the Special 
Resolutions, is attached along with the Notice circulated to the members of the Company, and 
is deemed an integral part thereof.” 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

mailto:co.secretary@nextcapital.com.pk
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STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 AND DISCLOSER 
OF DETAILS AS PER S.R.O. 423 (I)/2018: 
 
This statement sets out below the material facts concerning the Special Business to be transacted at the 
Annual General Mee�ng of Next Capital Limited (the “Company”) to be held at Karachi on October 25, 
2024, at 11:15 a.m i.e. pertaining to transfer of Finqalab to a wholly owned subsidiary.  
 
The following informa�on is being provided in accordance with the requirements of para B(5)(I) of S.R.O. 
423 (I)/2018:   
 

S. NO. DESCRIPTION INFORMATION REQUIRED 
i) Detail of assets to be sold, leased, or disposed of shall include the following: 
a) Descrip�on/Name of asset The proposed transac�on pertains to transfer of the 

en�re business division of Finqalab (including all 
tangible and intangible assets including copyrights, 
licenses, patents, trademarks, intellectual 
proper�es, as well as the employees) to a wholly 
owned subsidiary (“Project Subsidiary”) against 
issuance of shares.  
 
The asset is currently recorded as ‘capital work in 
progress’ under the ‘Intangible Assets’ of the 
Company with an aggregate amount of PKR 181.4 
million as per audited financials of June 30, 2024. 

b) Acquisi�on date of the asset Not applicable as it is an internally developed asset.  
c) Cost PKR ~181.4 million as per audited financials of June 

30, 2024. 
d) Revalued amount and date of 

revalua�on (if applicable) 
Not applicable.  

e) Book value PKR ~181.4 million as per audited financials of June 
30, 2024. 

f) Approximate current market 
price/fair value 

Same as book value. 

g) In case of sale, if the expected sale 
price is lower than book value or 
fair value, then the reasons 
thereof; 

Not applicable. 

h) In case of lease of assets, tenure, 
lease rentals, increment rate; 
mode / basis of determina�on of 
lease rentals; and other important 
terms and condi�ons of the lease; 

Not applicable.  

i) Addi�onal informa�on in case of 
disposal of land: 
 
(i) Loca�on; (ii) Nature of land (e.g. 
commercial, agriculture, etc); and 
(iii) Area proposed to be sold. 

Not applicable. 
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ii) The proposed manner of disposal 
of the said assets. 

The Company will transfer, by way of a business 
transfer agreement, the en�re business unit of 
Finqalab (including all tangible and intangible assets 
including copyrights, licenses, patents, trademarks, 
intellectual proper�es, as well as the employees) to 
a wholly owned subsidiary against issuance of 
shares for considera�on other than cash.  
 
In case of any opera�onal difficul�es or to bring 
efficiency to the transfer process, the Board may 
change the manner of transfer without impac�ng 
the spirit of the transac�on.  

iii) In case the company has iden�fied 
a buyer, who is a related party the 
fact shall be disclosed in the 
statement of material facts. 

Not applicable as the asset is not being sold rather 
it is being transferred to a wholly owned subsidiary 
where funds will be raised from external investors 
subsequently.  
 
However, this is per�nent to men�on that the Board 
of Directors of the Company has approved that a�er 
transfer of Finqalab to the Project Subsidiary, a 
rights issue will be conducted by the Project 
Subsidiary, pursuant to which the Company will 
renounce its shares and the co-founders (Najam Ali 
and Syed Irtaza Ali) will subscribe to shares at face 
value, such that they receive 40% ownership in the 
Project Subsidiary which may be diluted up to a 
maximum of 20% in future funding rounds. This 
shareholding is in recogni�on of their efforts in 
conceiving the idea; taking the product to MVP 
(minimum viable product) stage where equi�es 
module has atracted more than 2,500 sign-ups and 
~450 new trading accounts; securing external 
funding; and developing the remaining modules of 
the Project. The Board considered that for any 
startup, founders must retain a meaningful stake in 
the venture even a�er mul�ple founding rounds so 
that they remain commited to achieving its 
maximum poten�al and crea�ng sustainable 
returns for all the stakeholders. In this regard, 
literature review suggests that early-stage venture 
capitalists (VCs) typically require founders to hold a 
significant majority stake, ranging from 70% to 80%, 
to ensure alignment with the venture’s long-term 
success. However, in Finqalab’s case, the co-
founders are being offered a substan�ally lower 
equity stake (40% to 20%) to give benefit to Next 
Capital’s shareholders. By reducing the co-founders' 
stake, Next Capital's shareholders stand to benefit 
from a much larger ownership por�on, increasing 
their share in the poten�al upside of the Project.  
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With external fundraising which will poten�ally be 
at a substan�ally higher valua�on compared to the 
investment made by Next Capital, the value of Next 
Capital's stake in the venture is expected to increase 
mul�ples over. However, this growth poten�al is 
con�ngent upon the co-founders retaining a 
meaningful stake in the venture, ensuring their 
con�nued commitment and drive toward launching 
the remaining modules. 
 

iv) Purpose of the sale, lease, or disposal of assets along with following details: 
a) U�liza�on of the proceeds received 

from the transac�on 
Not applicable as the asset will be transferred to a 
wholly owned subsidiary against share issuance. 

b) Effect on opera�onal capacity of 
the company, if any; and 

None 

c) Quan�ta�ve and qualita�ve 
benefits expected to accrue to the 
members. 

Finqalab is a savings, investments, and payments 
pla�orm designed to unify a disjointed financial 
system and become a digitally accessible ‘one-stop 
shop’ for mee�ng personal finance needs. It aims to 
offer mul�ple savings and investments products on 
a single pla�orm including (1) equi�es, (2) mutual 
funds, (3) insurance, (4) fixed income securi�es, (5) 
commodi�es, (6) digital lending, and (7) digital 
wallet (hereina�er referred to as “modules”). The 
modules will be coupled with layers of in-app 
educa�onal content, and automated advisory (AI 
driven basic advisory on capital alloca�on) based on 
user risk profiles, enabling them to make informed 
financial decisions (the “Project”). 
 
The Project was conceived by the co-founders in 
FY22, and it is being developed in the form of a 
mobile applica�on. Realizing the scale and scope of 
the Project and ensuring a responsible deployment 
of resources, a modular/sequen�al approach has 
been adopted by the management where the first 
module of equity trading has been recently 
launched while other modules are being worked 
upon for which funding is required. A�er 
conduc�ng a detailed financial modeling exercise, it 
has been es�mated that substan�al investment will 
be required to develop the next 3-4 modules. In this 
regard, Finqalab team has begun outreach to 
Venture Capital firms (VCs) and early-stage 
investors.  
 
Before seeking external funding, Finqalab is 
required to be transferred from Next Capital to the 
Project Subsidiary for the following reasons:  
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1. Investor Preference: Startup investors 

require a clean and dedicated corporate 
structure for new ventures. As Next Capital 
operates mul�ple business divisions and is 
already listed on the PSX, it is not an 
appropriate vehicle nor able to raise capital 
solely for Finqalab. 
 

2. Shareholder Protec�on: Raising funds for 
Finqalab within Next Capital would 
unnecessarily dilute the share of exis�ng 
shareholders in other business divisions, 
such as Investment Banking, Ins�tu�onal 
Brokerage, and REIT Advisory. 
 

3. Efficient Structure: Carving out Finqalab will 
allow a larger and more diverse investor base 
to be tapped, result in more efficient 
�melines for capital raising, with focused 
due diligence on the Project Subsidiary. This 
will also result in focused valua�on and 
provide a clear exit opportunity to external 
investors through an IPO of the Project 
Subsidiary in future which will unlock value 
for Next Capital as well. 

Disclosure under para C(2) of S.R.O. 423 (I)/2018: 
 The nature and extent of interest, if 

any, therein of every director, 
whether directly or 
indirectly. 

Except to the extent of their respec�ve 
shareholding in the Company and as provided 
below, the Board of Directors of the Company have 
no direct or indirect interest in the Special Business: 
 
 Mr. Najam Ali, the CEO and Director of the 

Company is one of the two co-founders of 
Finqalab and has interest in the Project 
Subsidiary as explained in sec�on (iii) above.  

 
 
Availability of Relevant Documents  
Copies of the documents pertaining to foregoing Special Business are available for inspec�on at 
the Registered Office of the Company during normal office working hours from the date of 
publica�on of the No�ce �ll the date of the AGM.  
 
Undertaking by the Directors  
The Board of Directors have carried out necessary due diligence for the proposed transac�on.  
 
Expected �me of comple�on of the transac�on  
It is expected that transac�on will be completed by October 24, 2024.  
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS Year ended 30 June 

 

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

Profit and Loss Account
Operating revenue 166,553                 119,203                 417,290                 368,170                 195,817                 
Investment gains - net 47,247                    (3,229)                     (37,831)                  13,362                    (1,676)                     
Other income 52,558                    40,517                    47,568                    39,980                    52,465                    
Total Turnover 266,357                 156,492                 427,027                 421,512                 246,606                 

Operating & administrative expenses 233,404                 227,596                 337,662                 287,488                 197,121                 
Financial cost 36,263                    18,548                    26,069                    22,970                    13,008                    
Profit/(loss) before taxation (3,310)                     (89,652)                  63,295                    111,054                 36,477                    
Profit/(loss) after taxation (21,727)                 (97,214)                 30,779                   81,998                   17,794                  

Balance Sheet
Share capital 569,250                 569,250                 495,000                 495,000                 450,000                 
Reserves (112,930)                91,203                    80,260                    49,482                    (43,023)                  
Share holders equity - net of discount on issue of shares 406,320                 428,047                 525,260                 494,482                 406,977                
Long term liabilities 41,536                    25,400                    22,796                    31,322                    32,614                    
Current assets 595,020                 603,054                 965,156                 1,044,111              659,265                 
Current liabilities 418,067                 363,372                 602,491                 673,698                 344,509                 
Total assets 865,923                 816,818                 1,150,547             1,199,501             784,099                
Total liabilities 459,603                 388,771                 625,287                 705,020                377,122                

RATIOS
Performance
Net Profit/(loss) Margin (%) -13.0% -81.6% 7.4% 22.3% 9.1%
Profit/(loss) before tax (%) -2.0% -75.2% 15.2% 30.2% 18.6%
Expense/income (%) 140.1% 190.9% 80.9% 78.1% 100.7%
Return on equity (%) -5.3% -22.7% 5.9% 16.6% 4.4%
Price Earning (%) -8.3% -33.0% 7.0% 11.3% 4.8%

Leverage
Debt to equity (%) 36.9% 35.0% 28.6% 38.8% 46.7%
Interest cover (x) 0.91                        (3.83)                       3.43                        5.11                        1.35                        

Liquidity
Current (x) 1.42                        1.66                        1.60                        1.55                        1.91                        

Earning Per Share (EPS) - values before 2022 restated (0.38)                      (1.71)                      0.54                       1.66                       0.36                       
Breakup Value/Net Assets per share - values before 2022 restated 7.14                        7.52                        9.23                        9.99                        8.22                        
Market Value Per Share 4.59                       5.17                       7.77                       14.72                     7.48                       

------------------------------- Rupees in Thousands -------------------------------
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Chairmans' Report 

 

I am pleased to present to you, the Annual Report for the year ended June 30, 2024. 

 

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of Next Capital Limited (NCL) has performed their du�es diligently in 
upholding the best interest of shareholders’ of the Company and has managed the affairs of the Company in an 
effec�ve and efficient manner. The Board and the management have made their best efforts in minimizing loss 
for the year that occurred due to adverse market condi�ons and dwindling economic overall environment.  

 

The Board of Directors of NCL comprises of highly professional and experienced people. They bring exper�se 
from various business disciplines. All Board members are aware of their fiduciary responsibili�es and fulfill these 
by playing an important role in providing strategic direc�on to the management and necessary guidance for 
compliance with policies and standards. 

 

The Board of Directors’ performance has been highly sa�sfactory and Board Members have exercised the 
required strategic oversight. The efforts of the Board’s Audit Commitee, the Human Resources & Remunera�on 
Commitee and Risk Management Commitee are par�cularly noteworthy for their valuable contribu�ons in 
providing requisite leadership support. 

 

The Board has exercised its powers in light of the power assigned to the Board in accordance with the relevant 
laws and regula�on applicable on the Company and the Board has always priori�zed the Compliance with all the 
applicable laws and regula�on in term of their conduct as directors and exercising their powers and decision 
making. 

 

At the end I would like to thank our shareholders, my fellow directors and stakeholders for all their support & 
again acknowledge with gra�tude the sustained and ongoing dedica�on of the company’s management and staff 
in very challenging opera�ng condi�ons. We look forward to future success in the Company’s endeavors.  

 

 

 

 

 

 
Gen. Tariq Waseem Ghazi (Retd.)                                                                       September 27, 2024 

                   Chairman  



  

15 
 

                            Annual Report 2024 

   

Director’s Report 

Economic Review & Outlook 

The year that passed, saw major improvements in Pakistan’s overall macroeconomic environment as it 
concluded. Earlier part of the year saw historic high interest rates with high infla�on outurns. External account 
remained under pressure despite the June 2024 USD3 billion 9-month IMF Stand By Arrangement and con�nued 
support from friendly countries including Saudi Arabia, UAE, and China. Exchange parity also witnessed pressure 
where PKR crossed PKR307/USD in the interbank market during the earlier part of the year under review amid 
smuggling of USD in the neighbouring country. 

As the year progressed, Pakistan’s Balance of Payments stabilized with a series of Current Account Surpluses that 
were primarily led by a healthy growth in remitances and drop in imports as the economic slowdown persisted. 
The country total foreign exchange reserves increased to USD14 billion at the end of the year under review from 
USD9.2 billion on June 30, 2023. Exchange parity also improved a�er effec�ve measures were taken by the law-
enforcing agencies to control smuggling of USD, and the regulator to strengthen currency market. PKR also 
stabilized against the greenback a�er a significant apprecia�on to below PKR280/USD. 

Significant improvement in exchange parity, a healthy agriculture output, and base effect helped in bringing 
down infla�on despite significant increase in the prices of electricity and gas. Average infla�on for the year under 
review came down to 23.4% compared to 29.2% of the previous year with June 2024 reading coming down to 
12.6%. 

Overall economic ac�vity showed signs of recovery where real GDP posted a growth of 2.4% compared to a 
decline of 0.2% in the previous year where the growth is primarily led by a 6.3% growth in agriculture sector. 
With easing in infla�onary pressures with constrained growth, the Monetary Policy Commitee of the central 
bank embarked on a monetary easing cycle with a 150 basis points reduc�on in policy rate to 20.5% in June 2024 
and further 300 basis points cut in the subsequent period taking it to 17.5%. 

Poli�cal uncertain�es ahead of the 2024 general elec�ons also got setled as new elected coali�on government 
was formed and took charge with a focus of presen�ng an IMF posi�ve budget and nego�a�ng a new longer and 
larger program with the lender of the last resort, which it subsequently did as subsequent to the period under 
review, IMF’s Execu�ve Board has approved a USD7bn Extended Fund Facility for Pakistan prior to which 
Pakistan’s credit ra�ng was upgraded by interna�onal agencies a�er the Staff Level Agreement on the new loan. 
Now the government appears commited to put the house in order and implement the much-needed structural 
reforms for achieving a sustainable all-inclusive long-term growth. Infla�on outurns decelerated to single-digit 
crea�ng room for further monetary easing in the months to come. Fiscal account is likely to see some easing 
with high profits from SBP and reduced expenditure on debt servicing due to decline in interest rates. Mee�ng 
the revenue collec�on target set by the IMF however is troubling FBR and a mini-budget is expected soon. With 
external support of the IMF and other bilateral and mul�lateral partners, par�cularly expected investment from 
the Saudi Arabia, Pakistan’s foreign exchange reserves are likely to improve further going forward amid a stable 
external account. Tight fiscal policy with a focus on increasing tax-to-GDP ra�o along with increased geo-poli�cal 
uncertain�es and increase in interna�onal commodi�es’ prices, are key risks on overall outlook of Pakistan’s 
economy.  
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Equi�es market performance and outlook 

On a broader level ignoring vola�lity, Pakistan equi�es and the KSE100 Index rallied breaching the 80,000 mark 
from the beginning of the year under review with posi�ve sen�ments. However, pressure on exchange rate 
during the earlier part of the year, and prolonged poli�cal uncertain�es kept investors cau�ous leading to 
extreme vola�lity during the year under review. Overall posi�ve sen�ments were fueled by atrac�ve valua�ons 
with high dividend yields and expecta�ons of monetary easing amid disinfla�on.  The KSE100 Index closed the 
period under review at 78,445 level, gaining 89.2%, and 36,992 points. In USD terms, Pakistan equi�es posted a 
healthy return of 94.4%. 

With improved investor confidence, market turnover increased significantly as average daily volumes climbed 
up to 460.2 million shares and average daily value traded to PKR15.6 billion from 191 million shares and PKR6.1 
billion, respec�vely of the previous year. Foreign investors bought equi�es worth USD124.2 million during the 
period under review where most of the local par�cipants opted to book profits except insurance companies, and 
companies who were net buyers during the year under review.  

Going forward investor confidence is expected to significantly improve further with the new IMF program in 
place, and further cut in interest rates. The domes�c bourse s�ll trades at low mul�ples, and offers healthy 
dividend yields that are s�ll compe��ve with fixed income returns.  

Performance Overview: 

The following table depicts your company’s performance during the year under review; 

  2024 2023 
  Pak Rupees 
Profit/(Loss) for the year before tax (3,309,664) (89,651,949) 
Net Profit/(Loss) for the year a�er tax (21,726,632) (97,213,659) 
Earnings Per Share (0.38) (1.71) 

 

During the year, your company posted loss a�er tax of PKR21.7 million compared to a loss a�er tax of PKR97.2 
million of the previous year, transla�ng to a loss per share of PKR0.38 compared PKR1.71 of the previous year.  

Brokerage income increased to PKR121.1 million from PKR100.5 million of last year depic�ng an increase of 
20.5% primarily driven by increased turnover at the PSX. The Advisory and related income of your company 
doubled to PKR67.1 million compared to PKR33.6 million of the previous.  

With a healthy performance of capital markets, your company booked capital gains amoun�ng to PKR47.4 
million compared to PKR10.4 million of the previous last year. Unrealized loss on re-measurement of investment 
at fair value through profit and loss account significantly reduced to a loss of PKR0.1 million compared to a loss 
of PKR13.6 million of last year. 

Opera�ng and administra�ve expenses during the period increased to PKR108.6 million and PKR134.8 million, 
respec�vely showing increase of 19.2% and 10.1%, respec�vely over last year as the company is inves�ng to 
enhance its revenue streams. 

A significant increase of 2x was seen in finance cost amid all-�me high interest rates, while other income of your 
company improved by 29.7%. 
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The Board is commited to implemen�ng a long-term growth-oriented business strategy where increasing 
revenue is targeted not only through increasing brokerage business, but also targe�ng new and emerging 
opportuni�es in capital markets and investment banking, advisory, and related services segments as the country 
is expected to gradually come out of the current challenging environment. 

Compliance Statement: 

(a) The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present its state of affairs fairly, the 
result of its opera�ons, cash flows and changes in equity; 

(b) Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained; 
(c) Appropriate accoun�ng policies have been consistently applied in prepara�on of financial statements and 

accoun�ng es�mates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment, with which we concur; 
(d) Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards, as applicable in Pakistan and the Companies Act, 2017, as also 

stated in note number 2 of the financial statements, have been followed in prepara�on of financial statements; 
(e) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effec�vely implemented and monitored by Audit 

Commitee;  
(f) The Company is financially sound and there are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to con�nue 

as a going concern; 
(g) There has been no material departure from the best prac�ces of corporate governance, as detailed in the lis�ng 

regula�ons; 
(h) Key opera�ng and financial data of current year and preceding years is appearing a�er no�ce of AGM; 
(i) No dividend is announced for the year ended June 30, 2024.  
(j) There are no statutory payments on account of taxes, du�es, levies and charges which are outstanding as on 

June 30, 2024 except for those disclosed in the financial statements; 
(k) All the material changes and commitments affec�ng the financial posi�on of the Company occurred between 

the balance sheet date and the date of the directors’ report have been disclosed in the report; 
(l) Three directors have obtained training under the Director’s Training Program; 
(m) The Directors, CFO, CEO, Company Secretary, Head of Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children did 

not carry out any transac�on in the shares of the Company during the year; and 
(n) Patern of shareholding is disclosed a�er financial statements. 

 

Mee�ngs of the Board of Directors: 

Four Board mee�ngs were held during the financial year 2023-2024 and were atended by the Directors as 
follows: 

Name Designa�on Atendance 

Lt. Gen. Tariq Waseem Ghazi (Retd.) Director/ Chairman 4 

Mr. Najam Ali Director/ Chief Execu�ve Officer 4 

Mrs. Hanna Khan Director 3 

Mr. M. Zulqarnain Mahmood Khan Director 4 

Mr. Malik Khurram Shahzad Director 4 

Mr. Hassan Shahnawaz Director 4 

Mr. Ali Akhtar Ali Director 4 
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Composi�on of Board 

1. The total number of directors are seven as per the following:  

a. Male:  Six  

b. Female:  One  

 

2. The composi�on of board is as follows:  

 

Categories Names 

Independent Directors 
Lt. Gen. Tariq Waseem Ghazi (Retd.) 

Mr. Hasan Shahnawaz 

Other Non-executive Directors 

Mr. M. Zulqarnain Mahmood Khan 

Mrs. Hanna Khan 

Mr. Malik Khurram Shahzad 

Executive Directors 
Mr. Najam Ali 

Dr. Ali Akhtar Ali 

 

Commitees of Board 

The board has formed commitees comprising of members given below:  

b) Audit Commitee 

 Mr. Hasan Shahnawaz   Chairman, Independent Director 
 Mr. M. Zulqarnain Mahmood Khan  Member 
 Mr. Malik Khurram Shahzad               Member 
 

b) Human Resource & Remunera�on Commitee 
 Mr. Hasan Shahnawaz   Chairman, Independent Director 
 Mr. M. Zulqarnain Mahmood Khan  Member 
 Mrs. Hanna Khan    Member 

 

 

Director’s Remunera�on 

The Board of Directors has transparent procedures for remunera�on of directors in accordance with the 
Companies Act, 2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regula�ons 2017. 
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Credit Ra�ng 

The Company has been re-assigned en�ty ra�ngs of ‘A-/A-2’ (A Minus/A-Two) by VIS Credit Ra�ng Company Ltd. 
The outlook on the assigned ra�ngs is ‘Stable’. Issuer ra�ng scale defined by VIS as good credit quality; protec�on 
factors are adequate. Risk factors may vary with possible changes in the economy. 

Management Ra�ng 

The Company has been assigned management ra�ng of ‘BMR2++’ (BMR Two Plus Plus) by VIS Credit Ra�ng 
Company Ltd. The outlook on the assigned ra�ngs is ‘Stable’. Issuer ra�ng ra�onale defined by VIS as strong 
regulatory compliance levels; sound external controls, HR & IT services, risk management and financial 
management along with adequate ini�al control framework client rela�onship. 

Corporate and Social Responsibility 

Company being a responsible corporate en�ty is always conscious of its obliga�ons towards the people who 
work for it, people around its workplace and the society as a whole. 

External Auditors 

The re�ring auditors, Messrs. Baker Tilly Mehmood Idrees Qamar, Chartered Accountants, being eligible, have 
offered themselves for reappointment. Accordingly, the Board of Directors endorses the recommenda�on of the 
Audit Commitee for the appointment of Messrs. Baker Tilly Mehmood Idrees Qamar, Chartered Accountants as 
the auditors for the Company for the financial year ending June 30, 2025. 

Apprecia�on and Acknowledgement 

Next Capital, on behalf of its Board and management would like to place on record our apprecia�on for the 
efforts and con�nued support of the regulators including the Securi�es and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 
(SECP), the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP), Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) and the Government of Pakistan. 
We thank all our clients and shareholders who have placed their trust in our services in these troubled �mes 
and our staff for always pu�ng their best efforts forward. 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors. 

Date: September 27th, 2024 

 

 

 

 

       
_______________________      ______________________ 
Muhammad Najam Ali      Ali Akhtar Ali 
Chief Executive Officer      Director 
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NEXT CAPITAL LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023
ASSETS Note

Non-current assets
Property and equipment 4 22,757,128      37,255,427      
Right-of-use assets 5 44,889,587      25,473,580      
Intangible assets 6 184,882,225    132,316,263    
Investments in term finance certificates 7 4,020,000         4,020,000         
Long term deposits 8 5,264,761         4,764,761         
Deferred tax asset - net 9 9,088,829         9,933,918         

270,902,530    213,763,949    
Current assets
Short term investments 10 101,275,845    205,957,399    
Investment in marginal financing system 11 -                     -                     
Trade debts - net 12 122,876,159    217,288,698    
Deposits and prepayments 13 94,340,383      47,640,996      
Advances and other receivables 14 9,994,030         3,617,353         
Taxation - net 40,779,637      41,208,698      
Cash and bank balances 15 225,754,169    87,340,767      

595,020,223    603,053,911    

Total assets 865,922,753    816,817,860    

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserve
Authorised capital
100,000,000 (2023: 100,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 16.1 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 16.2 569,250,000    569,250,000    
Discount on issue of shares (50,000,000)     (50,000,000)     
Accumulated losses (112,930,010)   (91,203,378)     

406,319,990    428,046,622    
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities 5.1 41,535,736      25,399,711      

Current liabilities
Unclaimed dividend 3,004,827         3,004,827         
Current portion of lease liabilities 5.1 10,266,322      8,910,322         
Short term borrowing - secured 17 150,000,000    150,000,000    
Trade and other payables 18 254,795,878    201,456,378    

418,067,027    363,371,527    

Total equity and liabilities 865,922,753    816,817,860    

Contingencies and commitments 19

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 --------------------- Rupees --------------------

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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NEXT CAPITAL LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023
Note

Operating revenue 20 166,552,642    119,203,246    

Capital gain on sale of investments 21 47,357,370      10,374,433      

Unrealised loss on remeasurement of investment 
classified as fair value through profit or loss 10 (110,452)           (13,602,935)     

Operating expenses 22 (108,627,469)   (91,167,901)     

Administrative expenses 23 (134,829,719)   (122,451,086)   

Reversal / (charge) of loss allowance for life time expected credit loss (ECL) 12.2 10,053,271      (13,976,962)     

Finance cost 24 (36,263,241)     (18,547,780)     

(55,867,598)     (130,168,985)   

Other income 25 52,557,934      40,517,036      

Loss before income tax and levy (final & minimum tax) (3,309,664)       (89,651,949)     

Final taxes 26.3 (6,097,361)       (555,554)           

Minimum taxes 26.4 (12,470,342)     (8,183,122)       

Loss before income tax (21,877,367)     (98,390,625)     

Income tax
- Current For the year -                     -                         

prior year 995,824            (1,531,199)       
995,824            (1,531,199)       

- Deferred (845,089)           2,708,165         

Loss after income tax (21,726,632)     (97,213,659)     

Loss per share - basic and diluted 27 (0.38)                 (1.71)                 

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 --------------------- Rupees --------------------

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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NEXT CAPITAL LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023

Loss after income tax (21,726,632)     (97,213,659)     

Other comprehensive income for the year
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss

Realized gain on remeasurement of investment carried at FVTOCI -                     -                     

Total comprehensive loss for the year (21,726,632)     (97,213,659)     

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Financial Officer Director

 --------------------- Rupees --------------------

Chief Executive Officer
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NEXT CAPITAL LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023
Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before income tax and levy (final & minimum tax) (3,309,664)        (89,651,949)      
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property and equipment 16,071,170       20,940,394       
Depreciation on right of use asset 7,322,964         5,422,985         
Amortisation of intangible assets 164,115             163,667             
Capital gain on sale of investments (47,357,370)      (10,374,433)      
Unrealised loss in the value of investments at 'fair value through profit or loss' 110,452             13,602,935       
Mark-up on bank balances (32,037,472)      (21,244,893)      
Mark-up on investment in margin financing system (3,204,498)        (1,743,778)        
Mark-up under margin trading system -                     (857,650)           
Markup on term finance certificates (958,112)           (726,780)           
Profit on cash margin (11,734,469)      (7,008,504)        
Reversal / (charge) of loss allowance for life time expected credit loss (ECL) (10,053,271)      13,976,962       
Dividend income (3,930,239)        (3,703,690)        
Gain on disposal of property and equipment -                     (2,905,342)        
Other income (693,144)           -                     
Finance cost 36,263,241       18,547,780       

(50,036,633)      24,089,653       
(53,346,297)      (65,562,296)      

Changes in working capital 

Decrease / (increase) in current assets
Trade debts 104,465,810     64,836,444       
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables (41,341,595)      293,303,546     

63,124,215       358,139,990     
Decrease in current liabilities
Trade and other payables 51,467,165       (243,117,264)    
Contract liabilities -                     (1,166,658)        
Cash generated from operating activities 61,245,083       48,293,772       

Finance cost paid (28,135,283)      (7,873,334)        
Taxes paid (17,142,818)      (11,352,685)      
Net cash generated from operating activities 15,966,982       29,067,753       

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payment for purchase of property and equipments (1,572,871)        (2,719,650)        
Payment for purchase in Intangible (52,730,077)      (56,686,057)      
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment -                     8,289,500         
Payments against investment in margin financing system (159,992,396)    (95,865,348)      
Receipts from investment in margin financing system 159,992,396     106,910,028     
Investment in term finance certificate -                     (936)                   
Short term investments 151,928,472     (148,785,869)    
Mark-up received on bank balances and exposure margin 32,037,472       21,244,893       
Mark-up received on investment in margin financing system 3,204,498         -                     
Mark-up received on investment in margin trading system -                     857,650             
Mark-up received on term finance certificates 958,112             726,780             
Dividend received 3,930,239         3,703,690         
Other income 693,144             -                     
Long term deposits (500,000)           12,900,000       
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities 137,948,989     (149,425,319)    

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Lease rentals paid (15,502,569)      (13,977,875)      
Net cash used in financing activities (15,502,569)      (13,977,875)      

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 138,413,402     (134,335,441)    

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (62,659,233)      71,676,208       

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 75,754,169       (62,659,233)      

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS COMPRISE OF:
Cash and bank balances 225,754,169     87,340,767       
Short term borrowing - secured (150,000,000)    (150,000,000)    

75,754,169       (62,659,233)      

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

-                     -                     

 --------------------- Rupees --------------------

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director

Cash flows before working capital 



  

36 
 

                            Annual Report 2024 

 

NEXT CAPITAL LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Balance as at July 01, 2022 495,000,000  (50,000,000) 80,260,281    525,260,281   

Bonus shares issued during the year 74,250,000    -                 (74,250,000)   -                   

Total comprehensive loss for the year
Loss for the year -                  -                 (97,213,659)   (97,213,659)    
Other comprehensive income -                  -                 -                  -                   

-                  -                 (97,213,659)   (97,213,659)    

Balance as at June 30, 2023 569,250,000  (50,000,000) (91,203,378)   428,046,622   

Total comprehensive loss for the year
Loss for the year -                  -                 (21,726,632)   (21,726,632)    
Other comprehensive income -                  -                 -                  -                   

-                  -                 (21,726,632)   (21,726,632)    

Balance as at June 30, 2024 569,250,000  (50,000,000) (112,930,010) 406,319,990   

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer DirectorChief Financial Officer

------------------------------------------ Rupees ----------------------------------------

Issued, 
subscribed 

and paid-up 
share capital

Discount on 
issue of 
shares

Total
Accumulated 
profit / (loss)
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NEXT CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

The Company has a branch office at 63-A, Agora Eden City, DHA Phase 8, Lahore.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

-

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

- Securities brokers (licensing and operations) Regulations, 2016.

2.2 Basis of measurement

2.3 Functional currency and presentation currency

2.4 Use of estimates and judgments

Next Capital Limited ("the Company") was incorporated as a public limited company in Pakistan on December 14, 2009 
under repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). The Company obtained corporate
membership from Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited ("the Exchange") on February 02, 2010 and was listed on the said
Exchange on April 27, 2012.

The Company is a TREC holder of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and a member of Pakistan Mercantile Exchange
Limited and is accredited broker by Financial Market Association of Pakistan. The Company is principally engaged in
brokerage of shares, stocks, equity and debt securities, commodities, forex and other financial instruments and
corporate finance services. Further, the Company is engaged in trading in equity and debt securities on its own
account through ready, spot and forward counters of the stock exchange. The registered office of the Company is
situated at 2nd Floor, Imperial court, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting applicable in Pakistan comprise of: 

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS standards) issued by the International Accounting Standard
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

Where provisions of and directives issued under Companies Act, 2017, Securities brokers (licensing and operations)
Regulations, 2016 differ with the requirements of IFRS standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the
Companies Act, 2017 and Securities brokers (licensing and operations) Regulations, 2016 have been followed.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for equity investments
which are carried at fair values and lease liability valued at present value.

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the functional and presentation currency of the
Company and have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting standards, as applicable in Pakistan, requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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- Property and equipment (note 3.1 and 4);
- Right of use asset and lease liability (note 3.15 and 5)
- Taxation (note 3.3 and 26);
- Allowance for expected credit loss (note  3.4 and 12);
- Contingencies (note 3.13, 19 and 27);
- Provisions (note 3.5).

2.5 New or amendments / interpretations to existing standards, interpretation and forthcoming requirements

Effect on statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

For the year ended June 30, 2024
Taxation-Final taxes       (6,097,361)            (6,097,361)
Taxation-Minimum Taxes     (12,470,342)          (12,470,342)
Loss before taxation                       -              (3,309,664)
Taxation-Income tax      18,567,703                 150,735 

                      -            (21,726,632)
For the year ended June 30, 2023
Taxation-Final taxes          (555,554)                (555,554)
Taxation-Minimum Taxes       (8,183,122)            (8,183,122)
Loss before taxation                       -            (89,651,949)
Taxation-Income tax         8,738,676              1,176,966 

                      -            (97,213,659)

2.5.1

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' and IFRS Practice

                   (97,213,659)

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods in the revision affects both current and future periods.

The estimates and judgments that have a significant effect on the financial statements are in respect of the following:

After 
incorporating 

effects of change 
in accounting 

policy

Impact of 
Change in 

accounting 
policy

Had there been no 
Change in accounting 

policy

                                      -   
                                      -   
                      (3,309,664)
                   (18,416,968)

During the year the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) have withdrawn the Technical Release 27
"IAS 12, Income Taxes (Revised 2012)" and issued guidance – “IAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for
Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes”. The said guidance requires taxes paid under final tax regime to be shown separately
as a levy instead of showing it in current tax. Further the treatment of minimum taxes has been presented differently
in this guidance.

Accordingly, the impact has been incorporated in these financial statements retrospectively in accordance with the
requirement of International Accounting Standard (IAS 8) – ‘Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and
Errors’. There has been no effect on the Statement of Financial Position, Earnings per share and Statement of Changes
in Equity as a result of this change.

                   (21,726,632)

                                      -   
                                      -   
                   (89,651,949)
                      (7,561,710)

 ---------------------------- Rupees -----------------------------

New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the year ended June 30, 

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June 30, 2024. These
standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or did not have
significant impact on the financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Amendments to IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors' - Definition of Accounting Estimates

Effective date (annual periods 
beginning on or after)
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2.5.2

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to IAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates' -
Lack of Exchangeability

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2026

January 01, 2026

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements Classification
of liabilities as current or non-current

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Non-current
liabilities with covenants

Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' - Supplier finance 

Effective date (annual periods 
beginning on or after)

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on or
after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not
relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial
statements other than certain additional disclosures.

The Company adopted the narrow-scope amendments to the International Accounting Standard (IAS) 1, Presentation
of Financial Statements which have been effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
Although the amendments did not result in any changes to accounting policy themselves, they impacted the
accounting policy information disclosed in the financial statements.

January 01, 2026

New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are either not yet effective or relevant to the
Company

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023
Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Temporary exception to the
requirements regarding deferred tax assets and liabilities related to pillar two 

Effective date (annual periods 
beginning on or after)

January 01, 2025

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' - Supplier finance
arrangements

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures'-
Amendments regarding the classification and measurement of financial 

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Amendments regarding the
classification and measurement of financial instruments

Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Amendments to clarify how a seller-lessee
subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions

The amendments require the disclosure of 'material' rather than 'significant' accounting policies. The amendments
also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies, assisting the Company to
provide useful entity-specific accounting policy information that users need to understand other information in the
financial statements.

Management reviewed the accounting policies and updates to the information disclosed in Note 3 Material
accounting policies (2023: Summary of significant accounting policies) in certain instances in line with the
amendments and concluded that all  its accounting policies are material for disclosure.

Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a single transaction
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

3.1 Property and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Depreciation

Gains and losses on disposal

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

3.2 Intangible assets

Depreciation methods, residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

The material accounting policies are consistently applied in the preparation of these financial statements are the same
as those applied in earlier periods presented in these financial statements:

An intangible asset is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the asset will 
flow to the entity and the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost or self-constructed
assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to a
working condition for their intended use, the cost of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on
which they are located, and capitalized borrowing costs.

Depreciation is calculated on cost of property and equipment less their estimated residual values using the straight-
line method over their useful lives and is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Depreciation on additions to
property and equipment is charged from the date asset is available for use, till the date of its disposal. The estimated
useful lives of property and equipment for current and comparative periods are disclosed in note 4 to these financial
statements.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the company. The carrying amount of the part so replaced is derecognized. The costs relating
to day-to-day servicing of property and equipment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

IFRS 1 'First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards' has been issued by IASB effective from July
01, 2009. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

IFRS 18 'Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements' has been issued by IASB effective from January 01,
2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by SECP.

IFRS 19 'Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures' has been issued by IASB effective from January 01,
2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by SECP.

IFRS 17 - 'Insurance contracts' has been notified by the IASB to be effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2023. However SECP has notified the timeframe for the adoption. 

If significant parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property and equipment. 
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Trading Right Entitlement Certificate (TREC)

Software

Amortisation

Capital work-in-progress

-
-
-
-
-

-

3.3 Taxation, final and minimum tax

3.3.1 Final and minimum tax

The cost of an internally generated intangible asset comprises all directly attributable costs necessary to create,
produce and prepare the asset to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management.

Development costs not meeting the criteria for capitalization are expensed as incurred.

The availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the intangible asset.
The Company has ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The Company assesses at each statement of financial position date whether there is any indication that intangible
asset may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amount of such asset is reviewed to assess whether they
are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying amounts exceed the respective recoverable
amount, asset is written down to its recoverable amount and the resulting impairment loss is recognized in  Statement 
of profit or loss account. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. 
Where an impairment loss is recognized, the amortization charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the
asset’s revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life.

Development costs incurred on specific projects are capitalized when the Company can demonstrate all of the
following:

Completion of the intangible asset is technically feasible so that it will be available for use or sale.
The Company intends to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it.

This is stated at cost less impairment, if any. The carrying amount is reviewed at each statement of financial position
date to assess whether it is in excess of its recoverable amount, and where the carrying value exceeds estimated
recoverable amount, it is written down to its estimated recoverable amount.

Costs directly associated with identifiable software that will have probable economic benefits exceeding costs beyond
one year, are recognised as an intangible asset. Direct costs include the purchase costs of software and other directly
attributable costs of preparing the software for its intended use.

Computer software is measured initially at cost and subsequently stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Computation of minimum tax chargeable under various sections of ITO 2001, provisions of such sections require its
comparison with amount of tax attributable to income streams taxable at general rate of taxation, such minimum
taxes are not fully outside the scope of IAS-12 and a certain portion of them falls in scope of IAS - 12. Based on this, the 
minimum taxes under ITO 2001 are hybrid taxes which comprise of a component within the scope of IAS - 12 and a
component within the scope of IFRIC - 21 / IAS - 37.

The Company has the ability to use or sell the intangible asset.
Intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits.

Expenditure on research (or the research phase of an internal project) is recognized as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, instead they are systematically tested for impairment
at each reporting date. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised at straight line basis over the useful life
of the asset (at the rate specified in note 6 to these financial statements).
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3.3.2 Taxation

Current tax

Prior tax

Deferred tax

3.4 Trade debts and other receivables

3.5 Provisions

3.6 Trade and other payables

3.7 Revenue recognition

Performance obligations and revenue recognition policies

The company recognises revenue when it satisfies the performance obligations.

As regards final taxes, its computation is based on revenue or other bases other than taxable income, therefore, final
taxes fall under levy within the scope of IFRIC – 21 / IAS – 37, hence treated and classified accordingly, as per the
requirements of / and guidelines issued by ICAP.

In identifying and classifying each component of minimum tax being hybrid in nature, company designate the amount
calculated on taxable income using the notified tax rate as an income tax within the scope of IAS – 12 “Income taxes”
and recognize it as current income tax expense. Any excess over the amount designed as income tax, is recognized as a
levy falling under the scope of IFRIC – 21 / IAS – 37.

The charge for prior tax includes adjustments to charge for prior years which arises from assessments / developments
made during the year, if any.

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit or
loss except to the extent that it relates to item recognized directly in other comprehensive income in which case it is
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation
after taking into account available tax credits and rebates, if any. 

Deferred tax is recognised using statement of financial position method, in respect of temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement or the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using the enacted or substantively enacted rates or taxation.

The Company recognises deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits for the foreseeable
future will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Trade debts and other receivables are recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost less
impairment losses, if any. The company follows trade date accounting method to record its transactions. Actual credit
loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss. Trade debts and other
receivables considered irrecoverable are written off.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of expenditure required to settle the present obligation, and reflects the
present value of expenditure required to settle the obligation where the time value of money is material.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost.
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3.8 Foreign currency translation

3.9 Basic and diluted earnings / (loss) per share

3.10 Dividend distributions and appropriations

3.11 Cash and cash equivalents

3.12 Borrowings

The following table provides information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations in
contracts with customers, including significant payment terms, and the related revenue recognition policies.

Income on continuous 
funding system 
transactions and bank 
deposits

Performance obligation is satisfied on a time 
proportionate basis that takes into account the effective 
yield.

Revenue recognition policies

Revenue is recognised at a point 
in time when the provision of 
service is completed.
Revenue is recognised over the 
period when the customer utilizes 
advisory and consultancy services.
Revenue is recognised at a point 
in time when the right to receive 
dividend is established.
Revenue is recognised at a point 
in time as it accrues.

Advisory and 
consultancy income

Performance obligation is satisfied over the period of 
contract. Customer is invoiced at the time of satisfaction 
of each performance obligation under the contract. 

Dividend income Performance obligation is satisfied when the right to 
receive the dividend is established.

Type of service
Nature and timing of satisfaction of performance 
obligations including significant payment terms

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and deposits held with banks. Running finance under mark-up
arrangements that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company's cash management are
included as a component of cash and cash equivalent for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

Dividend distributions to the Company's shareholders and appropriations to reserves are recognised in the period in
which these are approved.

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings / (loss) per share (EPS) for its shareholders. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares, if any.

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the reporting date. Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the transaction date. Exchange gains or losses are taken to the statement of profit or loss .

Brokerage income Performance obligation is satisfied when the services are 
rendered

Mark-up income from 
investment in marginal 
financing system

Performance obligation is satisfied when it accrues using 
the effective interest method.

Revenue is recognised over the 
period when the customer utilizes 
exposure provided under marginal 
financing system.

Return on term finance 
certificates

Performance obligation is satisfied when it accrues using 
the effective interest method.

Revenue is recognised at a point 
in time as it accrues.

All interest bearing borrowings are initially recognized at the fair value of the consideration received less directly
attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, interest bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.
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3.13 Contingent liabilities

3.14 Financial instruments

3.14.1 Recognition and initial measurement

3.14.2 Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and 

-

-

-

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial liability is
initially measured at fair value plus, except for an item not at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction price. 

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company; or the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that arises
from past events, but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost, Fair Value Through Other
Comprehensive Income (FVOCI), or Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its business
model for managing financial assets in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the
first reporting period following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

An equity investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:

it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and 

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in statement of other comprehensive income. This election
is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL
on initial recognition. The Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.
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Financial assets - Business model assessment: 

-

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's management;

-

-

-

Financial assets - Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest: 

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows:
- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features; 
- prepayment and extension features: and 
- terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

Financial assets - Subsequent measurement and gains and losses: 

- Financial assets at FVTPL

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment
amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which 
may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial
asset acquired at a discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment
at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest
(which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this
criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend
income, are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered
sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company's continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are
measured at FVTPL.

For the purposes of this assessment, 'Principal' is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition.
'Interest' is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal
amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk
and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin. 

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers
the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual
term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In
making this assessment, the Company considers:

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These include
whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular
interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or
expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business
model) and how those risks are managed;

how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and



  

46 
 

                            Annual Report 2024 

 

- Financial assets at Amortised cost

- Debt investments at FVOCI

- Equity investments at FVOCI

Financial liabilities - Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses 

3.14.3 Derecognition

Financial assets 

Financial liabilities

3.14.4 Offsetting

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.
The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified
liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at
fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in statement of
profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Other net gains and losses are recognised in statement of other comprehensive income and are never
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if 
it is classified as held-for-trading. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange
gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset. 

The Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised in its statement of financial position,
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the
transferred assets are not derecognised. 

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised
cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in the statement profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in the statement
profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in statement of other comprehensive income. On derecognition,
gains and losses accumulated in statement of other comprehensive income are reclassified to the statement of
profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in the statement of
profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
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3.14.5 Impairment

(i) Financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for ECLs on:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost;
- debt instruments measured at FVOCI; and 
- contracts assets.

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date;
-

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

-

- the financial asset is more than 365 days past due.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Credit impaired financial assets

ECLs are probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-
impaired. A financial asset is 'credit-impaired ' when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime Expected Credit Losses (ECLs), except
for the following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition 
and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and
analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment and inducing forward-
looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due.

the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the
Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the
Company is exposed to credit risk.

other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.
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Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
- a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 365 days past due;
-

- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or
- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Write-off

(ii) Non-financial assets

3.15 Right-of-use assets and related liability

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.
The Company's corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows. If there is an indication that a corporate
asset may be impaired, then the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the corporate asset
belongs. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset or CGU. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested
individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing
use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or Company's of assets (the “cash-
generating unit, or CGU”).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations
of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. Financial assets that are written off could still
be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts
due.

A contract is, or contains a lease if the contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. The Company mainly leases properties for its operations. The Company recognises
a right-of-use asset and lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at
cost, however in accordance with para 16.35 of IFRS 16 which states "if the right-of-use assets relates to a class of
property, plant and equipment to which lessee applies the revaluation model in IAS 16, a lessee may elect to apply the
revaluation model to all the right-of-use assets that relate to that class of property, plant and equipment" the
management of the Company has decided to adopt revaluation model for subsequent measurement of right-of-use
assets. Therefore, subsequently the right- of-use assets are measured on revalued amount less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for certain remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use
asset is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier of end of the useful
life of right-of-use asset or end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of assets are determined on the same
basis as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any.

The lease liability against right of use asset is initially measured at the present value of the lease payment that are not
paid at the commencement date discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the
interest cost on the lease liability and decreased by lease payments made. It is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, a change in assessment of whether extension option
is reasonably certain to be exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised. 

the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of
the assets.
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3.16 Segment reporting

The operating segments of the Company are as follows:

Brokerage 

The brokerage activities include services provided in respect of share brokerage.

Advisory

It consists of advisory and consultancy function.

Other operations

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s
other components. An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors and
Chief Executive Officer to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance,
and for which discrete financial information is available.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term and low value assets.
The lease payments associated with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease
term. 

The other operations include services provided in respect of money market brokerage, forex brokerage, commodity
brokerage and share subscription commission.
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4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Year ended June 30, 2024
Opening net book value 7,662,048    11,959,068  10,851,751  6,782,560     37,255,427           
Additions during the year -                -                -                1,572,871     1,572,871             
Depreciation charge for the year (5,091,815)   (2,128,859)   (4,181,882)   (4,668,614)   (16,071,170)         

Net book value 2,570,233    9,830,209    6,669,869    3,686,817     22,757,128           

As at June 30, 2024
Cost 40,737,641  21,328,859  32,986,019  40,229,670  135,282,189        
Accumulated depreciation (38,167,408) (11,498,650) (26,316,150) (36,542,853) (112,525,061)       
Net book value 2,570,233    9,830,209    6,669,869    3,686,817     22,757,128           

Depreciation rates % per annum 20 10 20 20-33.33

Year ended June 30, 2023
Opening net book value 15,796,377  14,082,408  21,241,498  9,740,046     60,860,329           
Additions during the year -                -                -                2,719,650     2,719,650             
Disposal
Cost -                -                (8,289,500)   -                 (8,289,500)            
Depreciation -                -                2,905,342    -                 2,905,342             

-                -                (5,384,158)   -                 (5,384,158)            
Depreciation charge for the year (8,134,329)   (2,123,340)   (5,005,589)   (5,677,136)   (20,940,394)         

Net book value 7,662,048    11,959,068  10,851,751  6,782,560     37,255,427           

As at June 30, 2023
Cost 40,737,641  21,328,859  32,986,019  38,656,799  133,709,318        
Accumulated depreciation (33,075,593) (9,369,791)   (22,134,268) (31,874,239) (96,453,891)         

Net book value 7,662,048    11,959,068  10,851,751  6,782,560     37,255,427           

Depreciation rates % per annum 20 10 20 20-33.33

4.1

4.2 All immovable assets are situated at Head office in Karachi and branch office in Lahore.

2024 2023
5. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Opening balance 25,473,580  19,827,340           
Additions 26,738,971  -                         
Modification -                 11,069,225           
Depreciation expense (7,322,964)   (5,422,985)            

Closing balance 44,889,587  25,473,580           

a) The depreciation charge on right of use assets for the year has been allocated to administrative expenses.

b) The lessor of the leased property of Lahore is a Director.

5.1 Lease liabilities 

Rental contracts are made for a fixed period subject to renewal upon mutual consent of Company and lessor. Wherever
practicable the Company seeks to include extension option to provide operational flexibility. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. Management exercises significant judgement in
determining whether these extension and termination options are reasonably certain to be exercised. The future lease
payments have been discounted using incremental borrowing rate at the time of the inception  of the lease.

Vehicles
Furniture and 

fixtures
Leasehold 

improvements

The cost of fully depreciated assets as at June 30, 2024 is Rs. 73.715 million (2023: Rs. 35.980 million). 

-------------------------------------------------- Rupees --------------------------------------------------

Total
Computers and 

related 
accessories

 ------------- Rupees -------------
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5.1.1 Set out below the movements during the year in lease liability:
2024 2023

Opening balance 34,310,033   30,371,109     
Additions 26,738,971   -                   
Modification -                 11,069,225     
Interest expense 6,255,623     6,847,574       
Payments (15,502,569)  (13,977,875)   

Closing balance 51,802,058   34,310,033     

Current 10,266,322 8,910,322       
Non - current 41,535,736 25,399,711     

51,802,058 34,310,033     

5.1.2 Lease liabilities are payable as follows:

Not later than one year 18,027,035   10,266,322   13,507,983   8,910,322       
Later than one year but not later than five years 52,212,450   41,535,736   31,528,147   25,399,711     
Later than five years -                 -                 -                 -                   
  70,239,485   51,802,058   45,036,130   34,310,033     

Financial charges allocated to future periods (18,437,427) -                 (10,726,097)  -                   

51,802,058   51,802,058   34,310,033   34,310,033     

Less: Current maturity (10,266,322) (10,266,322) (8,910,322)    (8,910,322)      

41,535,736   41,535,736   25,399,711   25,399,711     

2024 2023
6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS Note

Pakistan Mercantile Exchange - membership card 950,000         950,000          
Trading Right Entitlement Certificate (TREC) 6.1 2,500,000     2,500,000       
Software 6.2 62,036           226,151          
Capital work in progress 6.3 181,370,189 128,640,112  

184,882,225 132,316,263  

6.1

2024 2023
6.2 Software Note

Net carrying value basis
Opening net book value 226,151         389,818          
Additions -                 -                   
Amortisation charge (164,115)       (163,667)         

Closing net book value 62,036           226,151          

Gross carrying value
Cost 5,644,660     5,644,660       
Accumulated amortisation (5,582,624)    (5,418,509)      

Net book value 62,036           226,151          

Amortisation rate 33% 33%

Lease 
payments

 ------------- Rupees -------------

Present value 
of lease 

payment

Lease 
payments

This represents TREC received from Pakistan Stock Exchange in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchanges
(Corporatisation, Demutualization and Integration) Act, 2012.

---------------------------------- Rupees ------------------------------------

2024 2023

 ------------- Rupees -------------

 ------------- Rupees -------------

Present value 
of lease 

payment
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2024 2023
6.3 Capital work in progress Note

Opening 128,640,112 71,954,055     
Capital expenditure incurred during the year 6.3.1 52,730,077   56,686,057     

Closing 181,370,189 128,640,112  

6.3.1 This represents the cost capitalised for the development of a software.

7. INVESTMENT IN TERM FINANCE CERTIFICATES

2024 2023
Carrying Carrying
amount amount

Name of investee
802 802           Soneri Bank Limited 4,020,000     4,020,000     4,020,000     4,020,000

Unredeemed Long term
7.1 Name of Security Face Value rating

Soneri Bank Limited - Tier 1 TFC 4,020,000     4,020,000     Perpetual A

2024 2023
8. LONG TERM DEPOSITS Note

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 125,000         125,000          
National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited 1,400,000     1,400,000       
Pakistan Mercantile Exchange 8.1 1,750,000     1,250,000       
Security deposit against office premises 1,869,761     1,869,761       
Security deposit against PSO card 120,000         120,000          

      5,264,761        4,764,761 

8.1 This represent deposits placed with Pakistan Mercantile Exchange for taking exposures in commodity market.

9. DEFERRED TAX ASSET - net

Deductible / (taxable) temporary difference arising in respect of:
2024 2023

Note

Accelerated depreciation / amortisation 2,343,485     (284,830)         
Liability against asset subject to finance lease 15,022,597   9,949,910       
Right of use asset (13,017,980)  (7,387,338)      
Allowance for expected credit loss 4,740,727     7,656,176       

9.1 9,088,829     9,933,918       

Mark-up rate 
(per annum)

 Maturity Face Value

 ------------- Rupees -------------

Face valueFace value

6 month KIBOR + 2%

------------------------------------ Rupees ----------------------------------

 ------------- Rupees -------------

 ------------- Rupees -------------

(Number of certificates)
2024 2023
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10.2

Number of Shares Market Value

BankIslami Pakistan Limited 1,187,000          26,422,620            
D.G.Khan Cement 210,000             18,956,700            
JS Bank Limited 1,990,000          19,442,300            

3,387,000          64,821,620            

11. INVESTMENT IN MARGINAL FINANCING SYSTEM

2024 2023
Note

Investment in MF at beginning of the year -                      9,300,902              
Total placements during the year 159,992,396     95,865,348            

Total release against MF during the year (163,196,894)    (106,910,028)        
Realised income on MF 3,204,498          1,743,778              

(159,992,396)    (105,166,250)        

Balance at end of the year -                      -                          

12. TRADE DEBTS - NET

Receivable from clients on account of:
- Purchase of shares on behalf of clients 119,729,886     227,900,617          

- Brokerage commission 
- Equity shares 9,040,096          5,805,315              
- Money market and forex - net 1,602,748          783,658                 

10,642,844       6,588,973              
- Consultancy fee 8,850,762          9,199,712              

Gross trade debts 12.1 139,223,492     243,689,302          

- Loss allowance for life time expected credit loss (ECL) 12.2 (16,347,333)      (26,400,604)           

122,876,159     217,288,698          

12.1 Aging analysis

The aging analysis of the trade debts is as follows:

Upto five days 93,870,952       130,223,861          
More than five days 45,352,540       113,465,441          

12.1.1 139,223,492     243,689,302          

12.1.1 This includes Rs.1,316,705 (2023: Rs. 7,262,057) as receivable from related parties.

These securities were held as collateral with the NCCPL on account of market exposure in accordance with the
provisions of the Securities Act, 2015.

---------------- 2024 -----------------

 ------------- Rupees -------------

This amount is given as a Margin Financing (MF) to our clients through National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited.
This amount is secured against securities of clients held in House accounts under pledged status. The Company is
financing on Financing Participation Ratio (FPR) of maximum 75% and charging markup upto the rate of 3 month
KIBOR plus 8%.
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2024 2023
12.2 Reversal / (charge) of loss allowance for life time expected credit loss (ECL)

Opening balance 26,400,604       12,423,642             
Charged during the year (10,053,271)      13,976,962             

Closing balance 16,347,333       26,400,604             

12.3 Pledge securities with financial institution Value

Pledged to financial institutions on behalf of brokerage house -                      -                           
Pledged to financial institutions on behalf of Directors / Sponsors / CEO / Shareholder 2,000,000          68,940,000             
Pledged to financial institutions on behalf of Clients 5,520,000          54,327,600             

12.4

2024 2023
13. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS Note

Deposit against exposure margin 13.1 71,710,211       29,313,065             
Deposit against Marginal Trading Services 13.2 14,677,923       10,052,862             
Prepaid expenses 3,056,270          3,753,261               
Sales tax receivables 4,895,979          4,521,808               

94,340,383       47,640,996             

13.1

13.2

2024 2023
14. ADVANCES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES Note

Considered good
Advance against salary - secured 880,832             907,500                  
Other receivables and advances - unsecured 14.1 9,113,198          2,709,853               

9,994,030          3,617,353               

14.1 This includes rent advance given to CEO amounting to Rs. 5.1 million.

15. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Balances with banks:
Savings accounts 15.1 199,254,787     76,475,247             
Current accounts:
- Conventional 22,719,769       9,710,016               
- Shariah compliant 3,761,613          1,134,884               

15.2 225,736,169     87,320,147             

Cash in hand 18,000               20,620                    

225,754,169     87,340,767             

 ------------- Rupees -------------

This represents deposit with National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited against the exposure margin in respect of
trade in future and ready market. These deposits carry profit at rates ranging from 19.00% to 19.00% (June 30, 2023:
10.75% to 17.00%) per annum.

 ------------- Rupees -------------

This represents deposit with National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited against the exposure margin against trade
and sustained losses to date on Marginal Trading Services. These deposits carry profit at rates ranging from 19.00% to
19.00% (2023: 10.75% to 17.00%) per annum.

 ------------- Rupees -------------

Customer assets held in the central depository system consists of 303,621,574 shares valued at Rs. 8,348 million.

---------------- 2024 -----------------
No. of Securities
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15.1

15.2

2024 2023
15.3 Customer and proprietor wise balances

Proprietary account balances including cash in hand 24,268,325       24,212,648                
Client account balances 201,485,844     63,128,119                

225,754,169     87,340,767                

16. AUTHORISED, ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

16.1 Authosried share capital

2024 2023 2024 2023

100,000,000 100,000,000   Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 1,000,000,000  1,000,000,000          

16.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

2024 2023
  Ordinary shares

45,000,000   45,000,000      Fully paid in cash 450,000,000     450,000,000              
4,500,000     4,500,000        Issued as bonus shares - 10% 45,000,000       45,000,000                
7,425,000     7,425,000        Issued as bonus shares - 15% 74,250,000       74,250,000                

56,925,000   56,925,000    569,250,000     569,250,000              

16.3 PATTERN OF SHARHOLDING
Shares held Percentage

Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children
Mr. Muhammad Najam Ali 15,645,836       27.485%
Mrs. Hanna Khan 4,408,401         7.744%
Mr. Muhammad Zulqarnain Mahmood Khan 9,005,908         15.821%
Dr. Ali Akhtar Ali 1                         0.000%
Lieutenant General(Retd) Tariq Waseem Ghazi 30,517               0.054%
Mr. Hassan Shahnawaz 2,846                 0.005%
Mr. Malik Khurram Shahzad 1,265                 0.002%
Mr. Syed Irtaza Ali 5,175                 0.009%

Public Sector Companies and Corporations 4,269,375         7.500%

5,516,032         9.690%

Others 18,039,644       31.690%

56,925,000       100.00%

16.4

2024 2023 2024 2023
Name of shareholders

Muhammad Najam Ali 15,645,836   15,645,836   27.485% 27.480%
Muhammad Zulqarnain Mehmood Khan 9,005,908     9,005,908     15.821% 15.820%
Adnan Afridi 5,691,867     5,691,867     9.999% 10.000%
MCB Bank Limited - Treasury 5,516,032     5,516,032     9.690% 9.690%
Hanna Khan 4,408,401     4,408,401     7.744% 7.740%
Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited 4,269,375     4,269,375     7.500% 7.500%

 ------------- Rupees -------------

This include Rs. 201.486 million (June 30, 2023: Rs. 16.128 million) kept in designated bank accounts maintained on behalf of 
clients.

Profit rate on savings accounts ranges from 20.50% to 20.50% per annum (June 30, 2023: 12.25% to 18.50% per annum.

------------ shares held ------------ ------------ % of holding ------------

Below are the names of shareholders having more than 5% of the shares and all changes in shareholding above 5%.

(Number of shares)

(Number of shares)

 ----------------- Rupees ------------------

Banks, development finance institutions, non- banking finance companies, 
insurance companies, takaful, modarabas and pension funds

2024
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2024 2023
Note

17. SHORT TERM BORROWING - SECURED 17.1 150,000,000 150,000,000           

17.1

2024 2023
18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Note

Trade creditors 198,598,674 77,232,043             
Payable to National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited 18.1 9,067,484     7,817,005                
Accrued salaries and other expenses 1,415,307     -                            
Payable to auditors 1,377,000     1,269,000                
Tax deducted at source 4,268,412     721,962                   
Commission payable 18.2 78,252           78,252                     
Accrued expenses 114,845         -                            
Accrued markup 8,479,253     6,606,918                
IPS Accounts 17,328,540   13,669,064             
Other payables 14,068,111   94,062,134             

254,795,878 201,456,378           

18.1

18.2 This represents commission payable to a foreign brokerage house.

19. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

19.1 Contingencies

19.1.1 The Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) passed an order for recovery of Sindh sales tax on advisory services amounting to Rs.
871,581 for the tax period July 2011 to June 2012. The Company filed appeal before the Commissioner Appeals (SRB)
against the said order. The Commissioner Appeals (SRB) passed the final order dated 21 November 2014 for recovery
of assessed amount Rs. 871,581 and default surcharge to be calculated at the time of payment. 

This represents Rs. 9.067 million (2023 Rs. 7.82 million) trade payable in respect of two days trading with T+2
settlement.

Running finance facility of Rs. 150 million (2023: Rs. 150 million) has been obtained by the Company from Sindh bank
having expiry on October 31, 2024 and is secured against charge over present and future current assets of the
Company. The mark-up on the facility is payable quarterly at 3 month KIBOR plus 3.5% (2023: 3 month KIBOR plus
3.5%). 

 ----------- Rupees -----------

 ----------- Rupees -----------

The SRB has passed an order on 30 June 2020 in respect of short declaration of revenue on which short paid sales tax
amounting to Rs. 1,730,745 including penalty of Rs. 86,537 was computed for the tax period from July 2012 to June
2013. The Company filed appeal before the Commissioner Appeals (SRB) against the said order and also filed the
petition against the order to the Court to add this case in earlier petition due to similar grounds of both orders. Appeal
and petition both are pending for hearings with Commissioner Appeals and the Court.

The SRB has passed an order on 11 October 2019 in respect of short declaration of revenue on which short paid sales
tax amounting to Rs. 6,347,287/- was computed for the tax period from July 2013 to June 2014. The Company filed
appeal before the Commissioner Appeals (SRB) against the said order and also filed the petition S.T.R.A. No. 6/2016
against the order to the Court. Appeal and petition both are pending for hearings with Commissioner Appeals and the
Court.

The Company filed the petition against the order to the Honourable High Court of Sindh ("the Court") and the Court
granted an interim order dated 28 November 2014 and restrained the SRB from demanding any payment till further
orders by the Court.
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19.1.2

After the compliance and payment no further notice has been received.

19.1.3

2024 2023
19.2 Commitments

-                 56,364,595            

165,528,685 68,942,430            

The SRB issued notice to the Company in respect of short payment of sales tax for the tax periods from July 2011 to
June 2018 amounting to Rs. 22.382 million. The Company provided all the relevant details and explanation to the SRB
and also paid tax amounting to Rs. 6.509 million along with penalty and default surcharge amounting to Rs. 0.375
million under the amnesty scheme provided through notification no. SRB-3-4/11/2018 dated May 18, 2018. 

For sale of quoted securities under future contracts against 
counter commitments

For purchase of quoted securities under future contracts against 
counter commitments

 ----------- Rupees -----------

During the year 2019-20, one of the client filed a case before the civil court of Lahore, against the Company, Pakistan
Stock Exchange Limited, Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and Central Depository Company, seeking
rendition of accounts and permanent injunction from the Company. The case is pending before the Civil Court Lahore.
The Company based on its lawyer's assessment and its legal standing is confident of a favourable outcome of the
same, therefore, no provision has been made in this regard. The possibility of materialisation of this case against the
Company is remote.

The management based on the advice of its advisor is confident that the above such services were not taxable under
the Sindh Sales Tax Act, 2011 till 1st July 2014, wherefrom amendment in the Act introduced. The department
erroneously charged Sales Tax on such services retrospectively. The Company was duly paying Sindh Sales Tax on
brokerage services and filing SST return accordingly. The Company is confident of a favourable outcome against all
orders passed by SRB, therefore, no provision has been made in this regard. For income tax contingencies, refer note
27.
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2024 2023
20. OPERATING REVENUE Note

Brokerage income 121,130,825   100,545,129   
Advisory / consultancy fee 67,073,660     33,589,539     
Debt capital market services -                   565,000          
Revenue including sales tax on services 20.2 188,204,485   134,699,668   

Less: Sales tax on services 21,651,843     15,496,422     

Net revenue excluding sales tax on services 20.1 166,552,642   119,203,246   

20.1 Disaggregation of revenue by timing of revenue recognition

Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred at a point in time 107,195,420   88,977,990     
Services transferred over time 59,357,222     30,225,256     

166,552,642   119,203,246   

20.2 This includes brokerage earned from related parties amounting to Rs. 0.506 million (2023: Rs. 1.634 million).

2024 2023
21. CAPITAL GAIN ON SALE OF INVESTMENTS Note

Gain on sale of short term investments in listed equity securities 47,357,370     10,374,433     

47,357,370     10,374,433     

22. OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other benefits 69,020,386     72,119,679     
Consultancy fees 22.1 5,366,170       5,385,363       
Commission and referral fee 16,635,871     -                   
Service and transaction charges 11,325,271     7,237,535       
Fees and subscription 6,279,771       6,425,324       

108,627,469   91,167,901     

22.1

2024 2023
23. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES Note

Salaries, wages and other benefits 23.1 52,068,010     54,406,073     
Telephone and communication charges 4,682,725       5,510,100       
Rent, rates and taxes 23.2 2,372,000       -                   
Utility charges 8,164,657       5,301,968       
Vehicle running expenses 8,862,170       6,503,830       
Depreciation on property and equipment 4 16,071,170     20,940,394     
Depreciation on right of use asset 5 7,322,964       5,422,985       
Amortisation 6.2 164,115          163,667          
Legal and professional charges 1,776,576       1,954,280       
Insurance 4,252,282       3,949,567       
Printing, stationery and postage charges 1,166,034       1,563,592       
Office supplies 1,300,517       1,590,380       
Office repair and maintenance 3,613,602       3,129,397       
Fees and subscription 1,286,218       1,316,030       
Travelling and entertainment charges 6,796,789       1,244,663       
Advertisement expenses 117,450          1,035,200       
Auditors' remuneration 23.3 1,404,000       1,269,000       
Security 5,889,525       3,631,447       
Generator fuel 592,223          537,622          
Miscellaneous 6,926,692       2,980,891       

134,829,719   122,451,086   

 --------------- Rupees --------------

 --------------- Rupees --------------

This includes consultancy fee to the Directors of the Company amounting to Rs. 0.645 million (2023: Rs. 0.639 million).

 --------------- Rupees --------------
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23.1

23.2 This is rental expense of Chief Executive Officer borne by the Company.

2024 2023
23.3 Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee 1,000,000       900,000                      
Half yearly review 165,000          150,000                      
Other services / certifications 110,000          100,000                      
Out of pocket expenses 25,000             25,000                        
Sindh sales tax 104,000          94,000                        

1,404,000       1,269,000                  

24. FINANCE COST

Bank charges 341,325          508,154                      
Interest on lease liabilities 6,255,623       6,847,574                  
Mark up charges 29,666,293     11,192,052                

36,263,241     18,547,780                

25. OTHER INCOME

Mark-up / interest on: 
- Bank balances - profit and loss account 32,037,472     21,244,893                
- Income Under Margin Financing System 3,204,498       1,743,778                  
- Income Under Margin Trading System -                   857,650                      
- Term Finance Certificates 958,112          726,780                      
Profit on cash margin 11,734,469     7,008,504                  
Dividend income 3,930,239       3,703,690                  
Others 693,144          5,231,741                  

52,557,934     40,517,036                

26. TAXATION

26.1

26.2

26.3

26.4

 --------------- Rupees --------------

This includes remuneration to Chief Executive Officer amounting to Rs. 14.43 million (2023: Rs. 18.00 million).

Since, there is no accounting profit during the year ended June 30, 2024 and tax has been charged under minimum tax
provisions therefore, no tax reconciliation is prepared for the year then ended.

This represents final taxes paid under section 150 & 37A of Income Tax Ordinance (ITO, 2001) representing levy in terms of
requirements of IFRIC - 21 / IAS - 37.

This represents portion of minimum tax paid under section 113, 233 & 153(1)(b) of Income Tax Ordinance (ITO, 2001),
representing levy in terms of requirements of IFRIC - 21 / IAS - 37.

The income tax returns of the Company have been filed up to tax year 2023 under the Universal Self Assessment Scheme. This
scheme provides that the return filed is deemed to be an assessment order. The returns may be selected for audit within five
years. The Income Tax Commissioner may amend assessment if any objection is raised during audit.
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26.5

2024 2023
27. LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED Note

Loss for the year, attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company (21,726,632)   (97,213,659)              

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 16 56,925,000    56,925,000               

Loss per share basic and diluted (0.38)               (1.71)                          

27.1 There is no dilutive impact on earnings per share.

28. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES 

2024 2023
28.1 Transactions during the year

Directors and their relatives

Consultancy fee 645,198          636,979                     

Brokerage income 499,186          1,304,322                 

Lease rentals paid 7,099,536      6,105,875                 

Key Management Personnel of the Company
Brokerage income 6,826              329,552                     

Order under section 161 and 205 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 has been passed by the Assistant Commissioner Inland
Revenue in respect of monitoring of withholding of taxes for the tax year 2016 on account of short deduction of tax on
payments made by the Company amounting to Rs. 0.10 million.

Order under section 161 and 205 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 has been passed by the Assistant Commissioner Inland
Revenue in respect of monitoring of withholding of taxes for the tax year 2011 on account of short deduction of tax on
payments made by the Company amounting to Rs. 0.876 million. Against the said order the company has preferred an appeal
before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) under section 127 of Income Tax Ordinance 2001. The case has been heard,
however, the decision in appeal is still pending. The management based on the advice of its advisor is confident regarding the
outcome of the case. Thereby no provision is made within the financial statements.

Order for amendment in assessment under section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 has been passed by the tax
authorities for the tax year 2011 on the basis that the tax deduction under section 153(1)(b) of the Ordinance was minimum tax, 
therefore, no refund is allowable to the Company creating tax demand of Rs. 26,698. The Company has preferred an appeal
before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) under section 127 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, where hearing in appeal is 
pending. The management based on the advice of its advisor is confident regarding the outcome of the case. Thereby no
provision is made within the financial statements.

The Company was selected for audit in respect of tax year 2016 through Random Computer Balloting in accordance with section
214C of the ordinance. The notice for submission of details was issued by Zone-V, Corporate Regional Tax Office, Karachi
whereas jurisdiction of the company falls with Zone-I Corporate Regional Tax office, Karachi. The same was responded and no
further notice has been received yet.

 ----------- Rupees -----------

 ----------- Rupees -----------

------------ Number ------------

Related parties comprise of associated companies, directors and key management personnel. Transactions with related parties
are at terms determined in accordance with the agreed rates. Transactions and balances with related parties other than those
disclosed elsewhere are as follows:

 ----------- Rupees -----------
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2024 2023
28.2 Balances outstanding as at year end

Directors and their relatives
Receivable from clients on account of:
- Purchase of shares on behalf of clients
Malik Khurram Shahzad (Director) 1,292,833      -                             

Muhammad Zulqarnain Mahmood Khan (Director) -                  304,185                     

Ali Akhtar Ali (Director) -                  138,611                     

Trade creditors 159,770          1,392,203                 

Lease liability against Lahore office 26,402,348    4,661,907                 

Key Management Personnel of the Company
Receivable from clients on account of:
- Purchase of shares on behalf of clients

Muhammad Rizwan Yousuf (Company Secretary) 23,657            344,273                     

Muhammad Omair Rashid (Chief Financial Officer) 214                 -                             

Muhammad Zubair Ellahi (Employee) -                  6,474,988                 

Trade creditors -                  29,587                       

Accrued commission to traders -                  193,550                     

28.3 Remuneration of chief executive officer, directors and executive

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Managerial remuneration 10,026,667 12,000,000 6,400,000   6,400,000   57,188,143    43,805,265               
House rent allowance 2,560,000   4,800,000   2,560,000   2,560,000   22,875,257    17,522,106               
Medical 640,000       1,200,000   640,000       640,000       5,718,814      4,380,527                 
Bonus -               -               -               -               1,818,387      500,000                     
Conveyance 1,200,000   -               -               -               -                  -                             
Consultancy fee -               -               645,198       636,979       -                  -                             

-               -               -               266,667       4,167,380      2,866,197                 

14,426,667 18,000,000 10,245,198 10,503,646 91,767,981    69,074,095               

Number 1                   1                   6* 6* 22 16

*

28.3.1

28.3.2 No fees is paid to directors for attending meetings.

Remuneration represents above payment to two directors only, the remaining four directors are not getting any remuneration
from the Company.

The CEO and executives are provided with the Company maintained cars. In addition, the CEO and executives are also entitled
for other benefits in accordance with the terms of employment.

The aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements for the year in respect of remuneration, including benefits to
directors and executives of the Company are as follows:

Contribution to 
voluntary pension fund

 ----------- Rupees -----------

------------------------------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------------------------

Chief Executive Directors Executives
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29.

2024 2023

Term finance certificates 4,020,000      4,020,000                 
Trade debts 122,876,159  217,288,698             
Deposits and prepayments 89,444,404    43,119,188               
Advances and other receivables 9,994,030      3,617,353                 
Cash and bank balances 225,754,169  87,340,767               

Listed equity securities 101,275,845  205,957,399             

553,364,607  561,343,405             

Unclaimed dividend 3,004,827      3,004,827                 
Current portion of lease liabilities 10,266,322    8,910,322                 
Short term borrowing - secured 150,000,000  150,000,000             
Trade and other payables 254,795,878  201,456,378             

418,067,027  363,371,527             

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management framework

30.1 Credit risk

Exposure to credit risk

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to
incur a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value of any collateral. Credit risk arises from the inability of the
issuers of the instruments, the relevant financial institutions or counter parties in case of placements or other arrangements to
fulfil their obligations. There is a possibility of default by participants and of failure of the financial markets, the depositories, the 
settlements or clearing system etc. 

Credit risk of the Company arises principally from its trade debts, long term deposits, advances, deposits and other receivables
and bank balances. The carrying amount of these financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. 

To reduce the exposure to credit risk, the Company has developed its own risk management policies and guidelines whereby
clients are provided trading limits according to their worth and proper margins are collected from and maintained by the clients.
The Management continuously monitors the credit exposure towards the clients and makes provision against those balances
considered doubtful for recovery. 

All transactions in listed securities are settled using National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited, being the central clearing
company of the country. The risk of default in such transactions is considered minimal, as delivery of securities is guaranteed by
the stock exchange.

The Company's policy is to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the internal risk management policies and
investment and operational guidelines. 

 ----------- Rupees -----------

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk). The Company's overall risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. 

The Board of Directors of the Company has an overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk
management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies. 

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

FINANCIAL ASSETS

At amortised cost

At fair value through profit or loss

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

At amortised cost
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2024 2023
Note

Long term deposits 8 5,264,761       4,764,761             

Trade debts 12 122,876,159   217,288,698         

Advances 14 880,832          907,500                

Deposits 13.1, 13.2 & 13.3 86,388,134     39,365,927           

Other receivables 14 9,113,198       2,709,853             

Cash and bank balances 15 225,754,169   87,340,767           

450,277,253   352,377,506         

The aging for trade debtors at the statement of financial position date is as follows:

Past due 0 - 90 days 102,900,796   190,241           178,569,877   685,854                

Past due 91 - 180 days 12,908,608     1,101,948        41,591,512     8,494,758             

Past due 181 days - 270 days 377,916          70,863              6,628,249       2,469,941             

Past due 271 days - 365 days 3,439,120       1,167,127        3,813,223       2,609,983             

More than 365 days 19,597,052     13,817,154      13,086,441     12,140,068           

139,223,492   16,347,333      243,689,302   26,400,604           

The maximum exposure to credit risk before any credit enhancements at June 30, 2024 is the carrying amount of the
financial assets as set out below:

Except for the impairment disclosed above, no impairment has been recognized in respect of these receivables as the
security against the same is adequate.

20232024

 ----------- Rupees -----------

-------------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------

ImpairmentGrossImpairmentGross

The credit quality of the Company's cash and cash equivalents, held with various commercial banks and financial
institutions is assessed with reference to external credit ratings thereof, ranging from AAA to A+ assigned by reputable
credit rating agencies.
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Credit rating and collaterals

Rating Short term Long term
Bank Agency rating rating Rupees (%)

Askari Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AA+ 3,814               0.002                     

Bank Al Habib Limited PACRA A1+ AAA  16,258,682     7.203                     

Bank Alfalah Limited PACRA A1+ AAA  1,690,035       0.749                     

Faysal Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AA 29,994             0.013                     

Habib Bank Limited VIS A1+ AAA  6,408,314       2.839                     

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AA+ 3,267,203       1.447                     

JS Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AA 37,621             0.017                     

MCB Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AAA  193,467,782   85.705                  

Meezan Bank Limited VIS A1+ AAA  3,761,613       1.666                     

The Bank of Punjab PACRA A1+ AA+ 740,852          0.328                     

United Bank Limited VIS A1+ AAA  20,028             0.009                     

Soneri Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AA- 50,231             0.022                     

225,736,169   100                        

Rating Short term Long term
Bank Agency rating rating Rupees (%)

Askari Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AA+ 3,814               0.004                     

Bank Al Habib Limited PACRA A1+ AAA  166,799          0.191                     

Bank Alfalah Limited PACRA A1+ AA+ 1,670,087       1.913                     

Faysal Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AA 15,714             0.018                     

Habib Bank Limited VIS A1+ AAA  754,404          0.864                     

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AA+ 3,045,853       3.488                     

JS Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AA- 8,634               0.010                     

MCB Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AAA  79,336,115     90.857                  

MCB Islamic Bank Limited PACRA A1 A 365,526          0.419                     

Meezan Bank Limited VIS A1+ AAA  1,134,884       1.300                     

The Bank of Punjab PACRA A1+ AA+ 740,852          0.848                     

United Bank Limited VIS A1+ AAA  12,351             0.014                     

Soneri Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AA- 65,113             0.075                     

87,320,146     100                        

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of
counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Company’s total credit exposure. The
Company's portfolio of financial instruments is diversified and transactions are entered into with credit-worthy
counterparties of diverse natures thereby mitigating any significant concentrations of credit risk. 

June 30, 2024

June 30, 2023
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32.

33. OPERATING SEGMENTS

Segment revenues 107,195,420   59,357,221       52,557,934       219,110,575           
Administrative and operating expenses 

(other than depreciation and amortization) 117,979,286   65,008,994       57,785,773       240,774,053           
Depreciation 11,463,126     6,316,416         5,614,592          23,394,134              
Amortisation of intangible assets 80,416             44,311               39,388               164,115                   
Net Impairment reversal on Trade Debts 10,053,271     -                     -                      10,053,271              
Capital gain or loss on sale of investments -                   -                     47,357,370       47,357,370              
Unrealized gain / loss -                   -                     (110,452)            (110,452)                  
Finance cost 17,768,988     9,791,075         8,703,178          36,263,241              
Finance Income 46,976,439     -                     5,581,495          52,557,934              
Taxation (9,024,314)      (4,972,581)        (4,420,072)        (18,416,967)            
Segment assets 423,642,369   233,435,591     207,498,303     864,576,263           
Segment liabilities 234,759,680   129,357,374     114,984,333     479,101,387           
Capital expenditure 57,483,670     -                     -                      57,483,670              

Segment revenues 75,581,904     30,225,256       13,396,086       119,203,246           
Administrative and operating expenses 

(other than depreciation and amortization) 117,867,923   46,772,985       20,580,114       185,221,022           
Depreciation 16,608,929     6,590,845         2,899,972          26,099,746              
Amortisation of intangible assets 103,110          40,917               18,003               162,030                   
Net Impairment reversal on Trade Debts (13,976,962)    -                     -                      (13,976,962)            
Capital gain or (loss) on sale of investments -                   -                     10,374,433       10,374,433              
Unrealized gain / loss -                   -                     (13,602,935)      (13,602,935)            
Finance cost (11,685,101)    (4,636,945)        (2,040,256)        (18,362,302)            
Finance Income 34,972,786     -                     1,840,560          36,813,346              
Taxation (4,763,877)      (1,890,428)        (831,788)            (7,486,093)               
Segment assets 630,949,209   111,273,336     408,324,295     1,150,546,840        
Segment liabilities 248,813,592   97,192,810       42,764,836       388,771,238           
Capital expenditure 76,076,561     1,241,267         4,554,906          81,872,734              

34. BASE MINIMUM CAPITAL

2024
Rupees

Trading Right Entitlement Certificates 2,500,000                

The notional value of the TREC and the break-up value of the shares for the purpose of BMC is determined by the PSX as under:

In compliance with the Regulation 19.2 of the Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited, every Trading Right Entitlement Certificate
(TREC) holder registered as a broker under Brokers and Agents Registration Rules, 2001, is required to maintain a Base Minimum Capital
(BMC) in the amount and form as prescribed in the Rule on the basis of Assets Under Custody (AUC). As per the said regulation, as at 30 June
2024, the Company is required to maintain BMC of Rs. 32.949 million. 

The Company has pledged shares of Pakistan Stock Exchange for taking exposures in regular and future market against Base Minimum Capital
(BMC) requirement.

----------------------------------------- Rupees -----------------------------------------

----------------------------------------- Rupees -----------------------------------------

2023

There were no major customer of the Company which derived 10 percent or more of the Company’s revenue. All non-current assets of the
Company as at June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 are located and operating in Pakistan.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Equity 
Brokerage

Investment 
Banking

Other 
Operations

Total

Net capital requirements of the Company are set and regulated by Pakistan Stock Exchange. These requirements are put in place to ensure
sufficient solvency margins and are based on excess of current assets over current liabilities. The Company manages its net capital
requirements by assessing its capital structure against required capital level on a regular basis.

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maintain healthy capital ratios and optimal capital structure in order to
ensure ample availability of finance for its existing operations, for maximizing shareholder's value, for tapping potential investment
opportunities and to reduce cost of capital. 

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. Furthermore, the
Company finances its operations through equity, borrowing and management of its working capital with a view to maintain an appropriate
mix between various sources of finance to minimise risk. 

Equity 
Brokerage

Investment 
Banking

Other 
Operations

2024

Total
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35. LIQUID CAPITAL BALANCE

S. No. Head of Account
 Value in

Pak Rupees 
Hair Cut /

Adjustments
 Net Adjusted

Value 

1.1 Property & Equipment 67,646,715      100% -                     
1.2 Intangible Assets 184,882,225    100% -                     

Investment in Debt Securities
If listed then:
i.  5% of the balance sheet value in the case of tenure upto 1 year. -                     5% -                     
ii. 7.5% of the balance sheet value, in the case of tenure from 1-3 years. -                     7.5% -                     
iii. 10% of the balance sheet value, in the case of tenure of more than 3 years. 4,020,000         10% 3,618,000         
If unlisted then:
i. 10% of the balance sheet value in the case of tenure upto 1 year. -                     10% -                     
ii. 12.5% of the balance sheet value, in the case of tenure from 1-3 years. -                     12.5% -                     
iii. 15% of the balance sheet value, in the case of tenure of more than 3 years. -                     15% -                     
Investment in Equity Securities
i. If listed 15% or VaR of each securities on the cutoff date as computed by the Securities 
Exchange for respective securities whichever is higher.

101,275,845    50,093,242      51,182,603      

1.6 Investment in subsidiaries -                     100% -                     
Investment in associated companies/undertaking
i. If listed 20% or VaR of each securities as computed by the Securities Exchange for 
respective securities whichever is higher.

-                     -                     -                     

ii. If unlisted, 100% of net value. -                     100% -                     

1.8
Statutory or regulatory deposits/basic deposits with the exchanges, clearing house or 
central depository or any other entity.

3,275,000         100% -                     

1.9 Margin deposits with exchange and clearing house. 86,388,134      0% 86,388,134      
1.10 Deposit with authorized intermediary against borrowed securities under SLB. -                     0% -                     
1.11 Other deposits and prepayments 29,024,869      100% -                     

Accrued interest, profit or mark-up on amounts placed with financial institutions or debt 
securities etc.

-                     0% -                     

100% haircut to be applied in respect of markup accrued on loans to directors, subsidiaries 
and other related parties

-                     100% -                     

1.13 Dividends receivable. -                     -                     -                     

1.14
Amounts receivable against Repo financing.
Amount paid as purchaser under the REPO agreement. (Securities purchased under repo 
arrangement shall not be included in the investments.)

-                     -                     -                     

Advances and Receivables other than trade receivables
i. No Haircut may be applied on the short term loan to employees provided these loans are 
secured and due for repayment within 12 months

-                     0% -                     

ii. No Haircut may be applied to the advance tax to the extent it is netted with provision of 
taxation

40,779,637      100% -                     

iii. In all other cases, 100% of net value 100% -                     
Receivables from clearing house or securities exchange(s)
100% value of claims other than those on account of entitlements against trading of 
securities in all markets including MtM gains.

-                                             -                           -   

Receivables from customers
i. In case receivables are against margin financing, the aggregate of (i) value of securities 
held in the blocked account after applying VAR based Haircut, (ii) cash deposited as 
collateral by the financee (iii) market value of any securities deposited as collateral after 
applying VaR based haircut.
i. Lower of net balance sheet value or value determined through adjustments.

-                     -                                             -   

ii. Incase receivables are against margin trading, 5% of the net balance sheet value.
ii. Net amount after deducting haircut

-                     5%                         -   

iii. Incase receivables are against securities borrowings under SLB, the amount paid to 
NCCPL as collateral upon entering into contract,
iii. Net amount after deducting haircut

-                     -                                             -   

iv. Incase of other trade receivables not more than 5 days overdue, 0% of the net balance 
sheet value.
iv. Balance sheet value

93,870,952      0%        93,870,952 

1.17

1.16

1.4

1.5

1.7

1.12

1.15

1. Assets

1.3
Investment in Government Securities: (Haircut applied on the basis of Difference between 
book value and sale value on the date on the basis of PKRV published by NIFT)

-                     -                     -                     

The below statement has been prepared in accordance with regulation 6(3) and schedule III of the Securities Brokers (Licensing and Operations) 
Regulations, 2016.



  

73 
 

                            Annual Report 2024 

 

S. No. Head of Account
 Value in

Pak Rupees 
Hair Cut /

Adjustments
 Net Adjusted

Value 

v. Incase of other trade receivables are overdue, or 5 days or more, the aggregate of (i) the 
market value of securities purchased for customers and held in sub-accounts after applying 
VAR based haircuts, (ii) cash deposited as collateral by the respective customer and (iii) the 
market value of securities held as collateral after applying VaR based haircuts.
v. Lower of net balance sheet value or value determined through adjustments

27,688,503      16,208,608             16,208,608 

vi. 100% haircut in the case of amount receivable form related parties. 1,316,704         100%                         -   
Cash and Bank balances
I. Bank Balance-proprietory accounts 24,250,325      0%        24,250,325 
ii. Bank balance-customer accounts 201,485,844    0%      201,485,844 
iii. Cash in hand 18,000              0%                18,000 

1.19 Subscription money against investment in IPO/ offer for sale (asset) -                     0% -                     
1.20 Total Assets 865,922,753    477,022,466    

Trade Payables
 i. Payable to exchanges and clearing house  9,067,484         0%          9,067,484 
 ii. Payable against leveraged market products -                     0%                         -   
 iii. Payable to customers      198,598,674 0%      198,598,674 
Current Liabilities
 i. Statutory and regulatory dues  4,268,412         0%          4,268,412 
 ii. Accruals and other payables  42,861,308      0%        42,861,308 
 iii. Short-term borrowings 150,000,000    0%      150,000,000 
 iv. Current portion of subordinated loans -                     0%                         -   
 v. Current portion of long term liabilities 10,266,322      0%        10,266,322 
 vi. Deferred Liabilities -                     0%                         -   
 vii. Provision for taxation -                     0%                         -   

 viii. Other liabilities as per accounting principles and included in the financial statements          3,004,827 0%          3,004,827 

Non-Current Liabilities
 i. Long-Term financing        41,535,736 100%                         -   
 ii. Staff retirement benefits                          -   0%                         -   

 iii. Other liabilities as per accounting principles and included in the financial statements 0%                         -   

Subordinated Loans
100% of Subordinated loans which fulfill the conditions specified by SECP are allowed to be 
deducted

                        -   100%                         -   

Advance against shares for increase in capital of securities broker                         -                           -                           -   

2.6 Total Liabilities      459,602,763      418,067,027 

The amount calculated client-to-client basis  by which any amount receivable from any of 
the financees exceed 10% of the aggregate of amounts receivable from total financees.

                        -                           -   -                     

The amount by which the aggregate of:
(i) Amount deposited by the borrower with NCCPL
(Ii) Cash margins paid and
(iii) The market value of securities pledged as margins exceed the 110% of the market value 
of shares borrowed

-                     -                                             -   

(a) in the case of right issues :  if the market value of securities is less than or equal to the 
subscription price;
the aggregate of:
(i) the 50% of Haircut multiplied by the underwriting commitments  and
(ii) the value by which the underwriting commitments exceeds the market price of the 
securities.
In the case of rights issue where the market price of securities is greater than the 
subscription price, 5% of the Haircut multiplied by the net underwriting

-                     -                     -                     

(b) in any other case : 12.5% of the net underwriting commitments -                                             -   -                     

2.1

2.2

3.3

Net underwriting Commitments

2.4

2.5

100% Haircut may be allowed in respect of advance against shares if:
(i) The existing authorized share capital allows the proposed enhanced share capital
(ii) Board of Directors of the company has approved the increase in capital
(iii) Relevant Regulatory approvals have been obtained
(iv) There is no unreasonable delay in issue of shares against advance and all regulatory 
requirements relating to the increase in paid up capital have been completed
(v) Auditor is satisfied that such advance is against the increase of capital.

                        -   100%                         -   

3.  Ranking Liabilities Relating to :

3.1

Concentration in Margin Financing

3.2

2.3

Concentration in securities lending and borrowing

1.18

2. Liabilities
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S. No. Head of Account
 Value in

Pak Rupees 
Hair Cut /

Adjustments
 Net Adjusted

Value 

The amount by which the total assets of the subsidiary ( excluding any amount due from the 
subsidiary) exceed the total liabilities of the subsidiary

-                                             -   -                     

5% of the net position in foreign currency.Net position in foreign currency means the 
difference of total assets denominated in foreign currency less total liabilities denominated 
in foreign currency

-                                             -   -                     

3.6 Amount Payable under REPO -                                             -                           -   

In the case of financier/purchaser the total amount receivable under Repo less the 110% of 
the market value of underlying securities.
In the case of financee/seller the market value of underlying securities  after applying 
haircut less the total amount received, less value of any securities deposited as collateral by 
the purchaser after applying haircut less any cash deposited by the purchaser.

-                                             -   -                     

If the market value of any security is between 25% and 51% of the total proprietary 
positions then 5% of the value of such security .If the market of a security exceeds 51% of 
the proprietary position, then 10% of the value of such security

-                                             -   6,737,437         

i. In case of customer positions, the total margin requirements in respect of open positions 
less the amount of cash deposited by the customer and the value of securities held as 
collateral / pledged with securities exchange after applying VaR haircuts

-                     -                     -                     

ii. In case  of proprietary positions , the total margin requirements in respect of open 
positions to the extent not already met

-                                             -   -                     

i. Incase of customer positions, the market value of shares sold short in ready market on 
behalf of customers after increasing the same with the VaR based haircuts less the cash 
deposited by the customer as collateral and the value of securities held as collateral after 
applying VAR based Haircuts

-                     -                     -                     

ii. Incase of proprietory positions, the market value of shares sold short in ready market and 
not yet settled increased by the amount of VAR based haircut less the value of securities 
pledged as collateral after applying haircuts.

-                                             -   -                     

3.11 Total Ranking Liabilities -                     -                     6,737,437         

52,218,002      

Summary of Liquid Capital

(i) Adjusted value of Assets (serial number 1.20) 477,022,466    
(ii) Less: Adjusted value of liabilities (serial number 2.6) (418,067,027)   
(iii) Less: Total ranking liabilities (serial number 3.11) (6,737,437)       

52,218,002      

3.10

Short sell positions

3.7

Repo adjustment

3.8

Concentrated proprietary positions

3.9

Opening Positions in futures and options 

3.4
Negative equity of subsidiary

3.5

Foreign exchange agreements and foreign currency positions
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2024 2023
36. CAPITAL ADEQUACY LEVEL

Total assets 865,922,753   816,817,860       
Less: Total liabilities (459,602,763) (388,771,238)      

Revaluation reserves -                   -                       

Capital adequacy level 406,319,990   428,046,622       

37. RESEARCH ANALYST 

38. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

39. GENERAL

39.1 Corresponding figures

40. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

Chief Financial Officer

----------------- Rupees -----------------

The corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever considered necessary, to comply with the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017.

Chief Executive Officer Director

These financial statements have been authorised for issue on by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

The total employees at year end were 72 (2023: 67) and the average number of employees during the year was 68
(2023: 68).

At present, the company employees only single member in the research department i.e. head of research reporting
directly to the Chief Executive Officer.
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No of No of 
FROM TO Shareholders Sharesheld

1 1 100 190 2,298                                  
2 101 500 61 17,401                                
3 501 1000 228 149,058                             
4 1001 5000 144 332,643                             
5 5001 10000 51 367,858                             
6 10001 15000 22 269,919                             
7 15001 20000 12 220,620                             
8 20001 25000 8 191,330                             
9 25001 30000 12 337,295                             
10 30001 35000 7 225,927                             
11 35001 40000 3 111,650                             
12 40001 45000 1 43,000                                
13 45001 50000 4 192,000                             
14 50001 55000 1 55,000                                
15 55001 60000 5 289,194                             
16 60001 65000 3 190,612                             
17 65001 70000 1 69,475                                
18 70001 75000 4 294,655                             
19 75001 80000 3 230,781                             
20 80001 85000 1 81,875                                
21 85001 90000 4 349,375                             
22 90001 95000 2 182,900                             
23 100001 105000 1 103,000                             
24 120001 125000 2 242,400                             
25 145001 150000 1 150,000                             
26 195001 200000 1 200,000                             
27 200001 205000 1 201,162                             
28 220001 225000 1 220,400                             
29 225001 230000 1 225,100                             
30 230001 235000 1 230,057                             
31 250001 255000 1 253,000                             
32 320001 325000 1 322,000                             
33 340001 345000 1 345,000                             
34 365001 370000 1 368,057                             
35 435001 440000 1 437,057                             
36 470001 475000 1 474,691                             
37 630001 635000 1 632,500                             
38 750001 755000 1 752,675                             
39 865001 870000 1 865,999                             
40 970001 975000 1 971,700                             
41 1190001 1195000 1 1,191,475                          
42 4265001 4270000 1 4,269,375                          
43 4405001 4410000 1 4,407,691                          
44 5515001 5520000 1 5,516,032                          
45 5690001 5695000 1 5,691,867                          
46 9000001 9005000 1 9,003,060                          
47 15645001 15650000 1 15,645,836                        

793 56,925,000                       

NO. OF SHARESSR NO.

TOTAL

NEXT CAPITAL LIMITED
PATTERN OF SHARE HOLDING

AS ON JUNE 30, 2024
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Pattern of Shareholding as on June 30, 2024 
 

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS 
SHAREHOLDERS  

SHARES 
HELD 

PERCENTAGE 

Name CNIC No. Categories  

Muhammad Najam Ali 35202-3033271-9 
Chief Execu�ve 

Officer 
Chief Execu�ve Officer 15,645,836 27.48% 

Hanna Khan 35202-2822520-8 Director Director 4,408,401 7.74% 

MUHAMMAD ZULQARNAIN 
MAHMOOD KHAN 

35202-2493681-3 Director Director 9,005,908 15.82% 

TARIQ WASEEM GHAZI 54401-2091494-1 Director Director 30,517 0.05% 

MALIK KHURRAM SHAHZAD 35201-8535416-9 Director Director 1,265 0.002% 

HASAN SHAHNAWAZ 61101-0488155-4 Director Director 2,846 0.005% 

ALI AKHTAR ALI 42301-9841448-9 Director Director 1 0.000% 

SYED IRTAZA ALI 35202-3811306-1 Childern Childern 5,175 .01% 

Associated companies, undertakings and related par�es Not Applicable 0 0.000% 

Execu�ves    

Public Sector Companies and Corpora�ons Others 4,269,375 7.5% 

Banks, Development Finance Ins�tu�ons, Non-Banking 
Finance Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, 
Modarabas and Pension Funds 

Not Applicable 5,516,032 9.69% 

Others Not Applicable Not Applicable 18,039,644 31.69% 

Total  56,925,000 100% 

 
Shareholders holding 5% or more (Substantial Shareholders) 

Name Shares held Percentage 
  Muhammad Najam Ali 15,645,836 27.48% 

  MUHAMMAD ZULQARNAIN MAHMOOD KHAN 9,005,908 15.82% 

  ADNAN AFRIDI 5,691,867 9.99% 

 Hanna Khan 4,408,401 7.74% 

 MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LTD 4,269,375 7.50 % 

 MCB BANK LIMITED - TREASURY 5,516,032 9.69% 
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PROXY FORM 

 
I/We __________________________________ being a member of M/s. Next Capital Limited and holder of _______________shares as per 

Folio No. _______________CDC Participant ID# _______________and Sub Account #______________/ CDC Investors Account # 

_______________hereby appoint Mr._________________________________________of___________________________(Folio No 

___________________ CDC Participant ID# ______________and Sub Account # ______________CDC Investors Account # 

_______________or failing him Mr _____________________________________of ___________________________ (Folio 

No._____________ CDC Participant ID# ___________________and Sub Account # __________________/ CDC Investors Account 

#________________) as my/our Proxy to attend, speak and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting 

of the Company to be held on October 25, 2024 at 11:15 am at the Head Office 2nd Floor Imperial Court Building, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, 

Karachi and any adjournment thereof/ 

Signed this ………………….....……..….. day of……….…………………………….2024 
 
WITNESSES:  
 
1- Signature ……………………………. 

Name ……………………………….. 

Address……………………………... 

……………………………………… 
 
NIC No. …………….……………… 
 

2- Signature …………….……..………. 

Name ……………………………….. 

Address……………………………... 

……………………………………… 
 
NIC No. …………………………… 

 
Notes:  

 
i. If a member is unable to attend the meeting, he/she may appoint another member as his/her proxy and 

send this form to Next Capital Limited, 2nd Floor Imperial Court Building, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, 
Karachi to reach not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting. 
 

ii. Attested copies if CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy holder shall be furnished 
with the proxy form. 

 
 

iii. The Proxy holder shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of meeting. 
 

iv. In case of corporate entity. The Board of Directors Resolution. Power of Attorney with specimen signature 
shall be submitted along with the proxy form of the Company. 

 
Rupees Five      

Revenue Stamp 
 
 

 

Specimen Signature ………………………………………… 

Holder of ……………………..... Ordinary Shares 

Share Register Folio No…………………………. 

“CDC” Participant’s ID No……..…A/c. No..…… 
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



 3  
 2024 


 307 




2024  30 
 14  9.2


 280 


 2024  23.4  29.2 

 12.6

 2.4  0.2 
2024  6.3 

 17.5  300  20.5  150  150

 2024


 7 
















 












 100 

 80,000
 

 89.2  100 
 94.4  78,445  36.992

 460.2 
 15  1  191 

 
 124 




 




2023 2024


(89,651,949) (3,309,664)  / 
(97,213,659) (21,726,632)  / 



(1.71) (0.38) 

 21.7  97.2 
 1.71  0.38 

 20.5  100.5  121.1 
 67.1  33.6 





 47.4  10.4








13.6 
 0.1 

19.2  
 134.8  108.6 

 10.1 

 29.7 







 




 2017  
 2 

 
 






 


 
 2024  30 
 2024  30 










 2023-2024 

  
4  /  
4  /  
3  
4  
4  
4  
4  


 1 

6 
1 



 2

 
 

























 

 
 


 

 
 


 

 
 




 2017  

 2017 



 /   'A-/A-2'  VIS









 'BMR2++'  VIS














 2025  30 















 

  




2024 27 



 2018 
 






 
2024  30 

 


 1
6 
1 

 2
 

 





 

 


 


 3


 4


 /  5


 /  
 6


 7

 


 
 8

 3  7  9


 1
 2
 3



 
 10


 11
 12
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 13
 /  /  14

  
  
  

 15


 16















 

 17


 36  3,6,7,8,27,32,33  
 18

   




6 




 2.33 



1

 36  3,6,7,8,27,32,33  
 19


   






16 




1


 




18 

 





2







19 
2022  30 






3





29 




4







